
 

 
Members are summoned to attend this meeting 

 
Kim Wright 
Chief Executive 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: Monday, 14 March 2022 

 

 

 
 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some 
business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
BUSINESS PANEL 

 

Date: TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2022 at 7.05 pm 
 

Civic Suite, Lewisham Town Hall, London SE6 4RU 
Also Remotely: via Microsoft Teams 

 
Enquiries to:  Jasmine Kassim 
Telephone:    0208 314 8577 (direct line) 
Email:   Jasmine.Kassim@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

Councillor Paul Maslin Chair Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor 
Octavia Holland 

Vice Chair L 

Councillor 
Peter Bernards 

Chair of Housing Select Committee L 

Councillor 
Juliet Campbell 

Chair of Safer and Stronger Communities Select 
Committee 

L 

Councillor 
Louise Krupski 

Chair of Sustainable Development Select Committee Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor Joan Millbank Labour Group Representative L 

Councillor John Muldoon Chair of Healthier Communities Select Committee Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor Luke Sorba Chair Children and Young People Select Committee L 

Councillor Susan Wise Labour Group Representative Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor Mark Ingleby Chair of Public Accounts Select Committee L 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to 
consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1.   Minutes 
 

1 - 11 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

12 - 15 

3.   Lewisham & Lee Green's Local Transport Network: Questions & 
Responses 
 

16 - 21 

4.   Key Decision Plan 
 

22 - 29 

5.   Open Session - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 9 March 2022 
 

30 - 37 

6.   Open Session - Decision by the Executive Director for Community 
Services 
 

38 - 48 

7.   Open Session - Decision by Executive Director of Corporate Services 
 

49 - 67 

8.   Scrutiny Update Report 
 

68 - 78 

9.   Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

79 

10.   Closed Session - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 9 March 2022 
 

80 - 85 

11.   Closed Session - Decision by Executive Director of Community Services 
 

86 - 91 

   

 



 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 

 

1. Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that minutes of those parts of meetings of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Business Panel which were opened to the press and public on  
25 January 2022 and 8 February 2022 be confirmed and signed.  
 
 
 
 
Kim Wright 
Chief Executive, 
Lewisham Town Hall,  
Catford SE6 4RU  
 
14 March 2022 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to consider minutes of that part of the meetings of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel of 25 January 2022 and 8 February 2022, 

which were opened to the press and public  

Minutes 
 

Date: 22 March 2022 
Key decision: No  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
BUSINESS PANEL 

Tuesday, 25 January 2022 at 7.05 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors Paul Maslin, Octavia Holland, Peter Bernards, Mark Ingleby, 
Louise Krupski, Joan Millbank, John Muldoon and Luke Sorba 
 
MEMBER(S) OF THE PANEL ALSO JOINING THE MEETING VIRTUALLY: 
Councillor Luke Sorba. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Juliet Campbell and Councillor 
Susan Wise 
 
MEMBER(S) UNDER STANDING ORDERS ALSO PRESENT AT THE MEETING: 
Councillor Patrick Codd, Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport 
 
NB: The Councillor listed as joining virtually was not in attendance for the purpose of the 
meeting being quorate, any decisions taken, or to satisfy the requirements of s85 Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 
OFFICER(S) ALSO JOINING THE MEETING VIRTUALLY: Director of Public Services, 
Director of Communities, Partnerships and Leisure, Assistant Chief Executive, Head of 
Strategic Transport, Head of Overview & Scrutiny, and Head of Committee Business. 
 
Clerk: Senior Committee Manager (In person) 
 
 
1. Minutes 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the open meeting held on 
16 November 2021 be confirmed as an accurate record. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

Councillor Maslin declared an interest in respect of item 4. He said that the 

report details a scheme for the delivery of new and affordable homes at the 

Shaftesbury Christian Centre. The site is in his ward and he was a strong 

supporter of the scheme. He intended to leave the meeting physically for the 

duration of the consideration of this item. 

 
3. Key Decision Plan 

 
The Head of Committee Business introduced the Key Decision Plan report to the 
Panel, and it was 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 2



 

 
 
 

2 

4. Open Session - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 12 January 2022 
 
Councillor Paul Maslin, the Chair of the Panel, welcomed Members and Officers 
present at the meeting, including Councillor Patrick Codd, the Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Transport. 
 
The Chair informed the meeting that he had made a request for the Panel to 
consider the decision taken by the Mayor and Cabinet on 12 January 2022 relating 
to “Lewisham and Lee Green Low Traffic Neighbourhoods: Consultation report and 
next steps”.  The questions and requests made by the Panel in relation to this Low 
Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs) topic are attached as an annex to these Minutes. 
 
In response to questions from Councillor Octavia Holland, the Cabinet Member 
informed the Panel that at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic, he was often 
approached by residents about the LTNs when on the streets, and at his doorsteps, 
and he responded to enquiries accordingly.  It was stated that the Council also 
received and responded to approximately 150 emails and several telephone calls 
from residents during the experimental introduction of the LTNs.  The Panel was 
advised that residents were provided with information about the practicalities of the 
LTNs, and their views were considered during the implementation, particularly from 
those living in the affected areas in Lewisham. 
 
The Panel noted that only about 16 emails were received by the Council after the 
recent proposals were agreed by the Mayor and Cabinet at its meeting on 12 
January 2022 and of those, 40% of residents informed that they were supportive, 
and the remainder 60% asked further questions about the implementation, with 
fewer notifications against.  The Cabinet Member expressed a view that fewer 
people seemed to want to take about the LTNs nowadays, apart from residents 
living in the Lee Green Ward, where implementation remained a concern.  
Notwithstanding that, Council would be assessing and responding to recent emails 
and any other enquiries from residents in relation to the revised scheme. 
 
The Cabinet Member also responded to questions from Councillor John Muldoon, 
advising that there should be no reason why scrutiny Members should not be privy 
to the same advice provided by officers to the executive.  The Cabinet Member 
confirmed to the Panel that the information and advice given in relation to the LTNs 
had been considered in the published officers’ report in the form of options to inform 
the proposals upon which the Mayor and Cabinet’s decision on 12 January 2022 as 
based. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Luke Sorba, the Director of Public Realm 
(the Director) advised the Panel that responses to consultation about the LTNs were 
considerably low because the scheme was introduced very quickly.  It was stated 
that a breakdown on ethnicity of residents in favour or against the scheme would be 
circulated to Members in due course.  Notwithstanding that, the Panel should note 
that it was not an unusual experience for councils across London to receive lower 
rates of responses to consultations from the local Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
community.  The Panel was advised that the Council had acknowledged that more 
effort was required corporately, and liaisons with ‘Voices of Lewisham’ and other 
local advocacy groups had commenced, with a view to understand the drivers 

Page 3



 

 
 
 

3 

needed to encourage Lewisham’s residents to engage, particularly those from the 
BAME community. 
 
The Director responded to another question by Councillor Sorba, advising the Panel 
that the consultation about the LTNs did not highlight a comparison about 
displacement against the evaporation of traffic levels because there was not 
sufficient time to design the scheme and engage on a set of measures.  
Notwithstanding that, it should be noted that the aim of the LTNs was to affect 
behavioural change.  The Panel was advised that implementation of the scheme 
was at the early stages, and the Mayor and Cabinet would be monitoring data about 
the impact and environmental improvements alongside incentive measures on a six-
monthly basis.  The Director stated that the monitoring assessment would take into 
consideration the fact that people’s working patterns had been changing due to the 
lifting of some restrictions which were in place at the initial stages of the Covid-19 
pandemic.  The Head of Strategic Transport added that academic research relating 
to the impact of implementation of LTNs across London was underway, and 
Lewisham would be learning and applying best practice from that work. 
 
The meeting also noted questions raised by Councillor Peter Bernards.  In 
response, the Cabinet Member echoed statement by the Director that the scheme 
was introduced quickly.  Notwithstanding that, lower paid workers, carers, and 
drivers of delivery vans and taxies should be able to travel easily within the LTNs.  
The Cabinet Member confirmed that problems with signage that were identified at 
the initial implementation of the LTNs were corrected.  It was stated that the 
Council’s website had been updated to highlight directions of restrictions on 
Lewisham’s roads.  The Panel was also advised by the Cabinet Member 
businesses in Lewisham had welcomed the review, and some had switched their 
travelling modes to bicycles and motorbikes.  The Cabinet Member was of a view 
that because of the number of LTNs connections across London, residents who 
would otherwise take short journeys in cars would find it convenient to do so by 
some other environmentally friendly ways overtime, and that longer journeys by 
vehicles would be easier. 
 
Continuing with his response to Councillor Bernards, the Cabinet Member stated 
that in the future, cameras would be installing cameras to all physical barriers on 
Lewisham roads, with a view to provide clear access for hospital ambulances and 
other emergency vehicles.  The Head of Strategic Planning added that the Council 
had been liaising with officials from the emergency services, and they had 
expressed a preference for cameras to be installed to physical barriers, particularly 
roads impacted by the LTNs. 
 
The Cabinet Member also responded to a question by Councillor Mark Ingleby, 
advising the Panel that although could not provide a timeline, he was certain that 
the Council would be applying complementary measures such as additional school 
street places, reductions to width of roads, the planning of trees, and the widening 
of pavements in designated areas to further enhance implementation of LTNs. 
 
Following on from the Cabinet Member’s response in the latter paragraph, the 
Director informed the Panel that the LTNs complementary measures would also 
include the erection of electric charging points and the planting of trees.  Thus, 
Highways officers would have to coordinate implementation with their colleagues in 

Page 4



 

 
 
 

4 

the relevant work disciplines and prioritise resources for approval by the Mayor and 
Cabinet.  Therefore, it would be unrealistic to apportion timescales to deliver the 
workstreams.  Notwithstanding that, delivery would be scheduled within reasonable 
a timeline. 
 
The Director also responded to an enquiry by the Chair, Councillor Maslin.  , 
advising the Panel that corporate learning from work undertaken to implement the 
LTNs included the speedily implementation of the LTN scheme.   
 
The Panel was advised that the Government wanted the LTNs to be introduced very 
quickly at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic, and at a time when Council officers 
were learning new ways of remote working.  Thus, to design and implement a 
scheme of such significance, which included a widescale consultation was 
challenging.  Thus, there was not sufficient details to support implementation, in 
particular that a set of data could not be collated in time, therefore was unable to 
consider incentive measures to encourage behavioural change.  It was stated that 
future scheme of such significance would be implemented without identified funding 
and plans in place for robust collection of data before and time, and plan to 
understand the model the effects of such a scheme and the effect on the wider 
community.  Furthermore, steps would be taken to gauge public interests, and 
colleagues I the Freedom of Information Team and those in central Communication 
Team would be aware of the activities to allow them time to organise resources to 
deal with consultation and responses in a timely fashion. 
 
Commenting on the response from the Director, the Chair stated that he was also 
interested in the Council’s mitigation and contingency armoury of the application of 
the LTNs but acknowledged that it would be a speculation because time was 
needed to monitor and assess the impact of implementation.  
 
The Cabinet Member closed by stating that notwithstanding the uncertainty 
regarding to timeframe, officers would aim to progress quickly with the 
implementation of complementary measures to operate alongside the LTNs 
 
The Chair echoed a recommendation made by Councillor Krupski, which requested 
that the Mayor and Cabinet should consider supporting local and national charities 
who were assisting Lewisham’s residents to cycle, particularly those working with 
the BAME group, and the local refugees’ community.   
 
The meeting also noted that an officer’s advised about the potential of a legal 
challenge because of the implementation of the LTNs in Lewisham would be 
circulated to Members in due course. 
 
On behalf the Panel, the Chair thanked Councillor Codd and officers for attending 
and responding to questions at the meeting. 
 
In closing, the Chair remarked that advance notification of topics to be considered 
would ensure that scrutiny was open, transparent and hones. 
 
The Panel 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

Page 5



 

 
 
 

5 

 
Annex 

 
Questions/requests/recommendation by Members of the Panel in relation to 
decision made by the Mayor & Cabinet on 12 January 2022 relating to: 
 

“Lewisham and Lee Green Low Traffic Neighbourhood: Consultation report 
and next steps” 

 
 
From Councillor Paul Maslin (Chair) 
1. What has been the experience of the implementation of the Local Traffic 

Neighbourhood (LTN)?  What are the lessons learned, particularly how to 
improve policy formation and policy implementation in the future? 

2. Whether the change in the portfolio holder’s responsibility for transport and 
legal LTN has had any detrimental impact on the policy formation and 
implementation? 

3. Why was there a decision to delay the publication of the LTN consultation 
results? 

4. Considering the results of the consultation, how do you feel about an issue 
which had stirred up very little support but a lot of opposition? 

5. Requested that officers state corporate learning through this experience. 
6. How vulnerable is the Council to legal challenge over the actions we have 

taken regarding the Lee Green Local Transport Network, as had happened 
elsewhere? 

7. What would be the Council’s mitigation and contingency armoury in regards 
to the implementation of the LTN? 

 
From Councillor Octavia Holland (Vice Chair) 
1. Requested an update about the sense of public feelings and reactions to the 

LTN decision. 
2. What kinds of correspondence by email or other means had the Cabinet 

Member for Environment and Transport received since the LTN decision was 
made?  How does that compare to the types of correspondence that were 
received when the first iteration of the LTN was implemented? 

3. Based on the types of questions received, what is the Cabinet Member of 
Environment and Transport’s sense of how the public had received the LTN 
decision? 

 
From Councillor John Muldoon 
1. What advice was provided to the executive when the LTN was set up?  Does 

scrutiny Members have the same right to such advice? 
 
From Councillor Luke Sorba 
1. Requested breakdown by ethnicity (and socio-economic profiles if possible) 

regarding respondents to the LTN consultation regarding those in favour and 
those against the revised scheme. 

2. Requested data that are particular to Lewisham’s LTN about the impact of 
displacement of traffic versus evaporation of traffic 

 
From Councillor Peter Bernards 

Page 6



 

 
 
 

6 

1. Was type of Equality Impact Assessment undertaken prior to the proposals 
being developed? 

2. The scheme was developed during the lockdown when most people were 
working from home.  What arrangements would be in place to remedy a 
situation after implementation, if monitoring data shows that the scheme was 
impacting negatively in the community? 

3. Would the monitoring data contain information as to how the scheme was 
impacting local community, in particularly those from Black and Ethnic 
Minority groups, as they often work front-line jobs as carers, taxi-drivers, and 
delivery drivers? 

 
Commenting on officers’ response to points 2 & 3 questions by Councillor 
Bernards, Councillor Maslin stated that he also would like to know the 
Council’s mitigation and contingency armoury in regards to the scheme, but 
acknowledged that it would be speculation,  
c 

4. Had there been an impact on emergency services as a result of 
implementing the LTNs in regard to response time? 

 
From Councillor Mark Ingleby 
1. As part of the Council’s Place-Based Strategy, would there be 

complementary measures that would include working with neighbouring 
communities of the LTNs, and roll out best practice across Lewisham to 
reduce speed and plant trees, with a view to reduce carbon emissions and 
create healthy neighbourhoods? 

 
From Councillor Louise Krupski 
Recommendation to the Mayor and Cabinet to consider supporting local and 
national charities that are assisting Lewisham residents to cycle, particularly those 
from the   BAME Group and the local refugee community. 
 

5. Open Session - Decision Taken by Executive Director of Community Services 
 

6. Scrutiny Update Report 
 
The Panel received an update report presented by the Head of Overview and 
Scrutiny as follows: 
 
Select Committees 
 
The Panel noted the penultimate round meetings were underway.   Those 
Committees with budget proposals to consider had considered them, or were in the 
process to do so.  It was stated that the Public Accounts Select Committee would 
be meeting on Thursday, 27 January 2022 to consider the budget in the round, and 
make a collective scrutiny referral to Mayor and Cabinet.   

 
The Panel was further advised that the Committees had been appointing Climate 
Change champions to ensure that work programmes take into account climate 
emergency considerations 
 
 

Page 7



 

 
 
 

7 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
The Panel noted that the next meeting would take place on 22 February, and the 
focus would be on the Future Lewisham priority “An Economically Sound Future”.  
Also noted was that the Chief Executive of the New Economics Foundation would 
address Members on the sustainable local economic growth.  It was stated that the 
Committee would also receive information form officers on the local context and 
activity relating to supporting residents into work, and attracting and supporting 
businesses.  
 
Task and Finish Groups 
 
The Panel was pleased to note that the work of all the groups were progressing 
well.  It was noted that the groups would meet in February to agree their final 
reports and recommendations.  The full Overview and Scrutiny Committee would 
consider the Mayor and Cabinet response to any recommendations made by those 
groups. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Joan Millbank, the Head of Overview and 
Scrutiny advised the Panel that once the current Task and Finish Groups had 
concluded, steps would be taken to learn from the exercise about what had gone 
well and what did not, with a view to improve scrutiny work practice in the next 
municipal year.  The Chair commented that there would be a separate political 
discussion amongst Members as well. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

7. Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime Drug Diversion Scheme Pilot - Verbal 
Briefing 
 
The Director of Communities, Partnerships and Leisure gave a verbal report to the 
Panel, highlighting the work undertaken by the Council in research about the impact 
of the criminal justice system relating to low level drugs offences in Lewisham. 
 
The Panel noted the report.  It was recognised that the Mayor of London’s Office for 
Policing and Crime was undertaking a similar piece of work.  Thus, there was a 
possible of partnership working with the Council on the issue. 
 
In response to question from Councillor Muldoon, the Director informed the Panel 
that given the street nature of the activities undertaken by cannabis users and 
sellers, the responsibility for undertaking diversion work rested with the Metropolitan 
Police.  The Director also quoted an extract from the National Drug Strategy to 
highlight to the Panel that local discussions were consistent with the national 
approach: 
 

“Sanctions will be proportionate and relevant to the circumstances.  For 
example, those who are caught in possession of drugs for the first time may 
be required to attend drugs awareness courses, so they have the opportunity 
to understand the harms of drugs and change their behaviour.  In some 
cases, an individual may need more than one opportunity to make this 
change in their lifestyle and police forces will have discretion to support this.  

Page 8



 

 
 
 

8 

Those who do not engage will continue to offend.  The police will be able to 
impose further requirements including living a fine or requiring them to do 
work in their community or agree to undertake drug treatment for this pattern 
of drug use.  Ultimately, they could receive a caution or face prosecution”. 

 
The Panel noted details about the value of diversionary activities that was keeping 
young people outside of the criminal justice system in regards cannabis usage. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

Page 9



 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
BUSINESS PANEL 

Tuesday, 8 February 2022 at 7.05 pm 
 
 

PRESENT IN PERSON:  Councillors Paul Maslin, Octavia Holland, Juliet Campbell, 
Louise Krupski, Joan Millbank, John Muldoon and Mark Ingleby 
 
MEMBER(S) UNDER STANDING ORDERS ALSO PRESENT IN PERSON: Councillor 
Kevin Bonavia, the Cabinet Member for Democracy, Refugees, and Accountability.   
   
MEMBER(S) OF THE PANEL JOINING THE MEETING VIRTUALY:  
Councillor Luke Sorba. 
 
NB: The Councillor listed as joining virtually was not in attendance for the purpose of the 
meeting being quorate, any decision taken, or to satisfy the requirement of s85 Local 
Government Act 2972. 
 
OFFICERES ALSO JOINING THE MEETING VIRTUALLY: Assistant Chief Executive, 
Head of Overview & Scrutiny, Head of Committee Business. 
 
Clerk: Senior Committee Manager (in person) 
 
Apologies for absence: none received.  
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest 

 
No interest was declared at the meeting. 

 
2. Open Session - Decisions by Mayor and Cabinet on 2 February 2022 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

3. Scrutiny - Executive Protocol 
 
The Panel noted a report introduced by the Head of Overview and Scrutiny 
relating to ‘Executive Scrutiny Protocol’ (ESP) for comment. 
 
The Head of Overview & Scrutiny confirmed to the Panel that the ESP was 
developed in light of statutory scrutiny guidance published in May 2019, which 
required local authorities and combined authorities to produce protocol as a 
reference point when exercising their functions.   It was stated the ESP was in a 
draft format, and that views from the Council’s scrutiny and executive Members 
were taken into account during its development.  The Panel was advised to 
comment on the draft for consideration by Members of the Council’s Constitutional 
Working Party.  It was confirmed that thereafter, the final submission would go to 
full Council on 2 March 2022 for agreement and application in Lewisham.   

Public Document Pack

Page 10



 

 
 
 

2 

 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, the Cabinet Member for Democracy, Refugees, and 
Accountability highlighted the importance of the ESP as a principle for mutual 
respect between scrutiny and executive functions, and endorsed the development 
as a reflection of efforts by the Local Democracy Working Party in ensuring 
effective working relationships within Lewisham’s political structure.  The Cabinet 
Member commented the final output would serve as an invaluable resource for 
application by current and potential Members. 
 
The meeting noted an addition to Paragraph 7.2 of the draft ESP by Councillor 
Sorba to add the following wordings to paragraph 7.2 “Questioning that seeks to 
add to sum of knowledge in the area being scrutinised”.  Councillor Sorba was a 
view that the addition would add weight to scrutiny for evidence purposes, and in 
explaining the Council’s practices leading to expectations for improvements.   
Members welcomed the suggestion by Councillor Sorba, but were of a view that 
officers should decide where to include the additional wordings for 
appropriateness. 
 
Councillor Muldoon suggested that the ESP should include areas for all Members 
to have the same access to officers’ advice, the use of meeting rooms, training 
and development opportunities.  Councillors Krupski and Ingleby were of a view 
that detailed research would ensure that the ESP was fit-for-purpose. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 

Page 11



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. Members must declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. There 
are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member Code of 
Conduct: 

(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 

(2)  Other registerable interests 

(3)  Non-registerable interests. 

1.2. Further information on these is provided in the body of this report. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 

Declarations of Interest 

Date: 22 March 2022 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive  

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



  

3. Disclosable pecuniary interests  

3.1 These are defined by regulation as: 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or gain 

(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than by the 
Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the register in 
respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member or towards 
your election expenses (including payment or financial benefit  from a Trade 
Union). 

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they are a 
partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, services or works. 

(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 

(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which 
they have a beneficial interest.   

(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land in the 
borough; and  

(b)  either: 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person* 
has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued share capital of 
that class. 

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person 
with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

4. Other registerable interests 

4.1 The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the following 
interests: 

(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you were 
appointed or nominated by the Council 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or 
policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25. 

Page 13



  

5. Non registerable interests 

5.1. Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely to 
affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more than it 
would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is not required 
to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning 
the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

6. Declaration and impact of interest on members’ participation 

6.1. Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are present at a 
meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must declare the nature of the 
interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The 
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and 
withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest which has not 
already been entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where 
such an interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of 
up to £5000  
 

6.2. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the meeting at the earliest 
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the 
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph 6.3 
below applies. 

6.3. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member of the public in 
possession of the facts would think that their interest is so significant that it would be 
likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the 
outcome improperly. 

6.4. If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, their, 
family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the local area 
generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply 
as if it were a registerable interest.   

6.5. Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal judgement, 
though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

7. Sensitive information  

7.1. There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not be 
registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and advised to seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

8.  Exempt categories 

8.1. There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in decisions 
notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. These include:- 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter relates 
to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent or 

Page 14



  

guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless the matter 
relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which you are a 
governor 

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 

(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  

(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 

(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception). 

Page 15



 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
To note responses to questions by Members of the Panel about Lewisham and 
Lee Green’s Local Transport Network (LTN). 
 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Panel considered an item relating to Lewisham & Lee Green’s LTN at its meeting on 
25 January 2022.  Officers responded to questions raised at that meeting as outlined in 
the Minutes, but it was agreed that responses to other questions on the matter would be 
circulated in due course, and these are attached to this report. 

 
 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to note responses to questions about Lewisham & Lee Green’s 
Local Transport Network following the meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Business 

Panel held on 25 January 2022 in open session 

Lewisham & Lee Green’s Local Transport Network: 

Questions & Responses 
 

Date: 22 March 2022 
Key decision: Yes 
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: Various 

Contributors: Senior Committee Manager / Head of Committees 

Page 16

Agenda Item 3



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A. From the Mayor of Lewisham 
 
Q1. What lessons have you learned from the LTN experience which will help you 

improve policy formation and implementation in the future? 
 

The government required councils across London to implement intervention 
measures very quickly. The speed we had to introduce measures affected 
the normal process of full engagement with residents and the public as a 
whole. The Council has learned from this experience and officers have 
committed to ensuring that any future LTN scheme in the borough will be 
based on clear factors including having funding in place for both incentive 
measures and restrictions to vehicular movement, a robust collection of 
before and after data to be able to understand the effects of interventions, 
full consideration of a traffic impact analysis/modelling if appropriate, full 
pre-consultation engagement, and consultation with councillors, residents, 
businesses and other stakeholders.   

  
Q2. There have been many changes to the portfolio holder responsible for 

transport policy and the Lee Green LTN.  As I understand it, initially it was 
held by Cllr Dacres and Cllr McGeevor as part of their job share.  Cllr 
Dacres then took sole responsibility when Cllr McGeevor went on maternity 
leave.  Cllr McGeevor then took sole responsibility when she returned from 
maternity leave.  Cllr Codd then took responsibility when Cllr McGeevor 
went on maternity leave for a second time.  It remains unclear whether or 
not Cllr McGeevor will take up responsibility again when she returns from 
maternity leave shortly.  Did this lack of constancy have a detrimental 
impact on policy formation and implementation with regard to the Lee Green 
LTN? 

 
I do not accept that a cabinet member taking parental leave under the 
Council’s agreed parental leave policy has led to any detrimental impact on 
policy as the LTN is being delivered in line with the Council’s agreed 
Transport Strategy and wider objectives. 

 
Q3. The results of the public consultation on the Lee Green LTN were not 

released until about a week before the M&C meeting that made the decision 
about the LTN’s future, when they were published as part of the agenda for 

Questions and responses about Lewisham and 
Lee Green’s Local Transport Network (LTN) 

 

 

Page 17



that meeting.  (Incidentally, I believe that this was a mere 8 hours before the 
deadline for the receipt of public questions for the recent meeting of Full 
Council).  Do you believe that this decision regarding publication is 
consistent with your manifesto pledge ‘to make our Council even more 
democratic, open and transparent’?  

  
The approach was to present the responses to the consultation in the 
decision making report. This is considered the correct approach for 
publishing Mayor & Cabinet decision papers and avoids ambiguity or 
potential confusion of information being taken out of context or published 
sporadically. This is consistent with all other initiatives and work streams for 
decision by Mayor & Cabinet. The consultation was only one element of the 
decision-making report so it was right to publish consultation results 
alongside other data too.  

 
Q4. The LTN is regarded as essential for dealing effectively with the Climate 

Change Emergency, yet broadly, according to the consultation, it is not 
supported by 6 in 10 people and struggles to command the support of 2 in 
10 people even amongst those who would be expected to benefit the most 
from it.  Is it possible to take such essential action which commands so little 
support and is opposed by 6 in 10 people, when we need the support of 5 in 
10 people to win elections and thereby be in a position to implement policy? 

 
The consultation was designed to engage with the experiences of residents 
and wasn’t intended to be a referendum. Furthermore we have seen from 
the responses that 75% of people who replied to the consultation were 
drivers, well above the number of drivers in the borough. Rather than 
weighting the results, which it could be argued would give a fairer 
representation of people’s views, they were released in their raw form so 
people can make their own judgement and conduct their own analysis.  
 
The public consultation on the LTN was only one part of the LTN review and 
in coming to a decision we have attempted to be evidence-led and look at 
the impact data we received on a variety of measures. When following this 
evidence led approach we can see that the LTN is currently meeting the 
criteria we originally set for it and these are listed below. Conscious that 
traffic patterns are unpredictable following the Covid pandemic, I have 
asked that updates are brought to Mayor & Cabinet on a six monthly basis 
so we can assure ourselves, based on the evidence provided, that the LTN 
is still meeting its objectives. 

 

Encourage people 
to walk and cycle 
more 

✔ 21% (1,483) of consultation respondents agreed 
that the revised LTN had encouraged them to 
walk or cycle more 
 
14% (751) of car drivers said the LTN had 
encouraged them to walk or cycle more 

Improve road 
safety 

✔ Average vehicles speeds have reduced by 2mph 
between March 2019 and February 2021 on 
roads both inside and outside the LTN 

Page 18



 
Average vehicle speeds have reduced by 1.2mph 
between June 2020 and February 2021 on roads 
both inside and outside the LTN 

Improve air quality ✔ The LTN is aimed at encouraging long term 
behaviour change and we did not anticipate a 
significant, immediate change in air quality. 
 
Monitoring found that the overall mean NO2 
concentration for the LTN monitoring network was 
29.0 ug/m3 for the original scheme and 31.4 
ug/m3 for the revised scheme. The legal limit is 
40 ug/m3. This data has been independently 
verified. 

Reduce traffic 
levels 

✔ Traffic levels reduced by 69% between March 
2019 and February 2021 
 
Traffic levels reduced by 20% between June 
2020 and February 2021 
 
39% of consultation respondents agreed that 
there was less traffic within the revised LTN 

Protect public 
health 

✔ 21% (1,483) of respondents agreed that the 
revised LTN had encouraged them to walk or 
cycle more. 
 
14% (751) of car drivers said the LTN had 
encouraged them to walk or cycle more. 

 
B. From the Director of Law, Governance and Elections 
 

Q1. How vulnerable are we to legal challenge over the actions we have taken in 
regard to the Lee Green Local Transport Network, as has happened 
elsewhere? 

 

It is not possible to eliminate the risk of a legal challenge being brought 
against the Council.  However, I am confident that the Council is in a good 
and robust position to defend any claims that are brought.  The steps taken 
by officers, including advice from Clive Sheldon QC, have ensured the 
Council has acted appropriately. 

 
C. From Head of Strategic Transport (Housing, Regeneration & Public Realm) 

 
Q1. What is the breakdown by ethnicity of respondents to the LTN consultation? 

 
LTN consultation responses by ethnicity 

 

 
This is a breakdown of the results by BAME respondents, White 
respondents and a comparison to the overall respondents in the graph 
below.  It should be noted that the below graphs capture those who 

Page 19



responded to the equality questions and have identified themselves as 
BAME or White. These questions were not mandatory and not all 
respondents to the consultation provided responses to these questions and 
others indicated as ‘prefer not to say’.  
 
1302 respondents chose not to answer the ethnicity question and 333 
respondents answered “Prefer not to say”  

 

 

Page 20



 
 

When examining the consultation responses regarding how people felt about both 
the original and revised schemes by ethnicity it shows that the responses from 
BAME and White respondents are broadly in line with all respondents. 
A full Equalities Impact Assessment was undertaken and formed part of the 
decision report. Please see appendix J. 

 
 

Page 21

https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s92723/Appendix%20J%20EQIA%2023%2012%202021%20fv.pdf


 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 

 

1. Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Business Panel receives and comments on the draft Key 
Decision Plan  

 
 
 
 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to receive a draft copy of the statutory Key Decision Plan with 
an explanatory explanation for items listed. 

Key Decision Plan 
 

Date: 22 March 2022 
Key decision: No  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee 

Page 22

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
  

 
 

  

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BUSINESS PANEL 

 

 

    
 

Forward Plan – March 2022 – June 2022 
 
 
This Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take in forthcoming months. All key decisions should appear in the Plan for at least 28 days before 
consideration by either Mayor & Cabinet or an Executive Director for delegated key decisions. 
 
Comments on this document should be sent to Kevin Flaherty 0208 3149327 or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 23



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

     

22/03/22 
Executive Director of 
Community Services 
 

Statutory Funeral Provision 
Contract 

£343,000 approx (over 
5 years duration)-cost 
and volume. Anticipated 
annual spend?  
£ 68,600 approx 

Tristan Brice Associate 
Director, Community 
Support and Councillor 
Chris Best, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

To seek approval for a 3 year contract with the 
option to extend for an additional 2 years. 

22/03/22 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration 
and Public Realm 

Award of Corporate Estate 
Maintenance Programme 
Phases 1 & 2 works contract 

 Akweley Badger 
Project Officer, Capital 
Programme Delivery 
and Councillor 
Amanda De Ryk, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Resources 

Improvement works to corporate buildings 

15/06/22 
Mayor & Cabinet 

Building for Lewisham Budget 
requirements parts 1 & 2 

Awaited James Ringwood 
Senior Development 
and Land Manager and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 

Awaited 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

BfL Programme – Approval to 
enter into contract 

Awaited James Ringwood, 
Senior Development 
and Land Manager and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 

Report will identify sites within the Building for 
Lewisham Programme that require Approval to 
enter into contract to allow further development. At 
present this relates to the Drakes and Valentines 
schemes. 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Location Priority Policy   Michael Moncrieff, 
Data & Housing Policy 
Analyst and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Housing 
and Planning. 

Requesting approval for a decision on the way in 
which the council determines which households are 
prioritised for temporary accommodation based on 
their need and the area of the property.  

P
age 24



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

S105 Consultation for 
Marnock and Knapdale  

 James Ringwood, 
Senior Development 
and Land Manager and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 

AWAITED 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Permission to Procure (Stop 
Smoking Contract)   

£368,556 P/A Danny Waites, Public 
Health Commissioning 
Manager and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult 
Social Care 

To conduct an open tender exercise to procure the 
following service: 
 
Stop Smoking Service Contract Core Contract for a 
period of three years from April 2023 with an option 
to extend or a further one + one years.   

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

New Cross Road Acquisition Awaited James Ringwood, 
Housing Delivery 
Manager and Cllr Paul 
Bell, Cabinet Member 
for Housing and 
Planning 

AWAITED 

15/06/22,  
Mayor & Cabinet 

Housing Infrastructure 
Funding (HIF) – Catford A205 
Realignment  

LBL have committed 
£3.7m capital match 
funding to deliver the 
road. LBL have 
approval to spend 
£150k on design costs 
governed through an 
MoU between LBL and 
TfL. LBL have 
expended £300k on 
design costs to date. 
LBL are required to 
spend an additional 
£110k on further design 
work by the end of the 

Charlotte Harrison, 
Catford Regeneration 
Programme Consultant 
and Councillor Paul 
Bell, Cabinet Member 
for Housing & Planning 

Report sets out progress on road realignment 
designs, spend to date under MoU and need to 
increase funding threshold, key spend and 
programme dates for HIF and an update on 
securing the remaining funding stack.  Key risks 
and mitigations will also be reviewed. 

P
age 25



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

financial year but further 
design work is likely 
required. MoU 
approved expenditure 
needs to be increased 
to £500k to allow for 
costs already incurred 
this year and additional 
design fees. The back-
to-back grant 
agreement with TfL will 
cover the full £10m 

15/06/22 
Mayor & Cabinet 

Request to extend the Extra 
Care Housing Support 
Contract for Conrad Court, 
Marine Wharf, Deptford. 

The cost of contract is 
estimated to be within 
the region of £740K per 
annum 

Heather Hughes, Joint 
Commissioning Lead 
Complex Care & Cllr 
Chris Best Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

The ECH contract at Conrad Court awarded to 
Notting Hill Genesis in October 2019 is due to 
expire in Sept 2022. The contract is for 700 hours a 
week care and support in an accommodation 
based service. The original award of contract 
allowed for a two year extension and this report is 
seeking agreement for that extension. 

15/06/22 
Mayor & Cabinet 

Permission to Procure Extra 
Care Housing at Hazelhurst 
Court 

Cost of contract 
estimated to be in the 
region of £550K 

Heather Hughes, Joint 
Commissioning Lead 
Complex Care & Cllr 
Chris Best Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

This contract is due to expire in October 2022. The 
ECH service is run in partnership with Phoenix 
Housing who are the landlord. This service is 
therefore subject to an open tender process. This 
report is requesting authority to proceed with this 
procurement. 

15/06/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Request for Approval to Waive 
Contract Procedure Rules for 
the Extra Care Housing 
Support Contract for 
Cinnamon Court, Deptford and 
Cedar Court Grove Park. 

£404,560 a year for 
each of the two 
schemes (£809,120 a 
year for both).  

Heather Hughes, Joint 
Commissioning Lead 
Complex Care and Cllr 
Chris Best, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Social Care 

Housing 21 is both the landlord and support 
provider at Cinnamon and Cedar Court. The 
existing contract for these services is due to expire 
in June 2020. This report is to seek agreement to  
negotiate a new contract with them.  

15/06/22 
Mayor & Cabinet 
 

Leisure Contract Extension Income of c£700,00 James Lee, Director of 
Communities, 
Partnerships and 
Leisure and Councillor 

The report seeks Executive Director approval for 
the extension of the contract to manage a number 
of the Council’s Leisure services. The decision was 
delegated to the ED of Community Services by 

P
age 26



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

Andre Bourne, Cabinet 
Member for Culture 

Mayor and Cabinet in August 2020 and it is a 
permitted extension. 

15/06/22  
Mayor and Cabinet 

Blackheath Joint Events 
Policy 2022-2027 

No immediate financial 
implications 

Nicholas Pond Parks 
and Open Space 
Contracts & 
Service Development 
Manager and Cabinet 
Member for 
Environment & 
Transport 

This document sets out the policy for Lewisham 
and Greenwich Councils in relation to events and 
activities taking place on Blackheath 

15/06/22  
Mayor and Cabinet 

Authority to procure a new 
contract for 0-19 Public Health 
Nursing (Health Visiting and 
School Health Service 

Annual value of 
approximately £6.9m, 
funded solely by the 
Public Health Grant. 

Emily Newell, CYP 
Joint Commissioner 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult 
Social Care 

Seeks approval to procure via direct negotiation a 
new contract for 0-19 Public Health Nursing 
Services with the current provider, Lewisham and 
Greenwich NHS Trust.  
The contract will deliver re-modelled Health Visiting 
and School Health Services, in line with the 
Council’s vision to develop Family Hubs.  
The report sets out the business case and rationale 
for this proposal, along with an overview of the new 
service model. It also provides detail on the 
proposed procurement strategy, along with 
financial and legal implications.   

15/06/22  
Mayor and Cabinet 

Response to Task and Finish 
Group – Digital Inclusion in 
Education 

 TBC by ED CYP and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children’s 
Services and School 
Performance 

A response to a referral made at Mayor & Cabinet 
on March 9 

15/06/22  
Mayor and Cabinet 

Response to Task and Finish 
Group – Digital Inclusion for 
Adults with Learning 
Difficulties 

 TBC by ED Community 
Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member 
Health and Adult 
Social Care 

A response to a referral made at Mayor & Cabinet 
on March 9 

P
age 27



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

15/06/22  
Mayor and Cabinet 

Response to Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee - ‘Future 
Lewisham – an economically 
sound future’. 

 TBC by ED HEPR and 
Councillor Kim Powell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Business and 
Community Wealth 
Building 

A response to a referral made at Mayor & Cabinet 
on March 9 

28/06/22 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration 
and Public Realm 

Meliot Centre Relocation 
Contract Award 

£320k to £330k Les Senior Project 
Manager Capital 
Programme Delivery 
and Councillor 
Amanda De Ryk, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Resources 

Refurbishment and Reconfiguration of 120 Rushey 
Green SE6 4HQ – Approval to tender works 

06/07/22  
Mayor and Cabinet 

Response to Task and Finish 
Group - Housing Retrofit Task 
& Finish Group 

 TBC by ED HEPR and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 

A response to a referral made at Mayor & Cabinet 
on March 9 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Lewisham Air Quality Action 
Plan 2022–2027 

 Dr Eliane Foteu 
Environmental 
Protection Manager 
and Azlam Baig, Public 
Health Strategist for 
Health Protection and 
Cabinet Member for 
Environment and 
Transport 

 

Like all English Local authorities, Lewisham is 
required to have an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) 
as part of the Council’s duty to manage local air 
quality. The AQAP sets out the commitment and 
actions Lewisham will take to improve air quality 
between 2022 and 2027.  

Schedule 11 of the Environment Act 1995 requires 
Local Authorities to consult on their AQAP with a 
range of persons and organisations.   

It was agreed on the August 2021 by Cabinet that 
the draft AQAP could go for public consultation, 
which has now taken place (between Wednesday 1 
September to Tuesday 5 2021)  

 

P
age 28



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

06/07/22  
Mayor and Cabinet 

Lewisham Autism Strategy  Polly Pascoe, 
Integrated 
Commissioning 
Manager and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult 
Social Care 

The aim of the report is to gain commitment from 
the Council to make Lewisham and Autism Friendly 
Borough and improve the quality of life for people 
with Autism and their carers. The content of the 
report has been informed by informed by 
engagement sessions with service users, carers 
and staff, followed by a borough-wide consultation 
exercise. Coproduction panels have supported the 
development of our action plans and we aim to 
maintain a coproduction response throughout the 
implementation of the strategy. 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 
 

The value of our 
housing stock is around 
£1.4billion and our 
Major Repairs Reserve 
is £31.9million 

Dawn Eckersley, Head 
of Housing 
Partnerships and 
Service Improvement 
and Councillor Paul 
Bell, Cabinet Member 
for Housing and 
Planning 

The HRA Business Plan is being prepared and will 
be presented to Members for approval. 

06/07/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Approval of Flood Risk 
Management Strategy 2022-27 

 Martin O’Brien, Climate 
Resilience Manager 
and Councillor Patrick 
Codd, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport 

The Flood and Water Management Act 2010 
places powers and duties on local authorities in 
respect of local flood risk, including publishing and 
maintaining a Local Flood Risk Management 
Strategy.  Lewisham’s current Flood Risk Strategy 
was published in 2016 and an updated strategy is 
needed to reflect new national strategies and 
programmes as well as local priorities and 
opportunities. The draft strategy is currently being 
consulted on. 

P
age 29



 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
To consider decisions taken by the Mayor and Cabinet on 9 March 2022, which will 
come in to force on 23 March 2022, unless called in by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Business Panel on 22 March 2022. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Mayor and Cabinet considered the following decision on 9 March 2022: 
 

i. Lewisham’s Climate Emergency Action Plan update 
ii. Lewisham Modern Slavery Statement 2022-2023 
iii. Ward Based Neighbourhood Community Infrastructure Levy (NCIL) 
iv. Lewisham Works – adoption of the ‘Connecting Communities’ ESF grant award 
v. Environment Agency Grant in Aid and Local Levy – Permission to submit 

Outline Business Case Application for Beckenham Place Park 
vi. Crofton Park and Honor Oak Neighbourhood Plan 
vii. A21 Development Framework 
viii. Supported Accommodation contract award 
ix. Framework Agreement for Services to Adults with Learning Disabilities (also 

contained Part 2 information) 
x. Permission to Procure Home Care 
xi. Permission to Award Contract for Lewisham Advocacy Hub (also contained 

Part 2 information) 
xii. Authority to negotiate with Lewisham & Greenwich Trust for the direct award of 

Specialist Sexual and Reproductive Health Services (also contained Part 2 
information) 

xiii. Building Security & Related Services (also contained Part 2 information) 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to consider decisions taken at a meeting of the Mayor and 
Cabinet held on 9 March 2022 in open session 

Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Date: 22 March 2022 
Key decision: Yes 
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Committees 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



 
2.2 The notice of the decision in respect of this report is attached below. 
 
2.3 Under the provisions of Standing Orders Part IV E 14, Members may call in an 

executive decision within 7 days.  If this report is not called in, the decisions will 
come into force on 23 March 2022. 

 

Page 31



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Mayor & Cabinet made the following decisions on March 9 2022. All 
recommendations shown were agreed by a 7-0 vote of voting members in physical 
attendance. 
 
The decisions will become effective on March 23 2022 unless called in by the 
Overview & Scrutiny Business Panel on March 22 2022. 
 
1. Lewisham’s Climate Emergency Action Plan update 
 

Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Transport, Councillor Sophie McGeevor, the 
Mayor and Cabinet agreed that the update on progress be noted. 

. 
2. Lewisham Modern Slavery Statement 2022-2023 

 
Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by Deputy 
Mayor, Councillor Brenda Dacres and the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources, Councillor the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that the Modern Day 
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement for 2022-2023 as appended be 
approved. 

 
3.  Ward Based Neighbourhood Community Infrastructure Levy (NCIL) 

 
Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by Councillor 
Kim Powell, the Cabinet Member for Business and Community Wealth 
Building, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that:the list of recommended 
projects in Section 10 be awarded NCIL ward funding. 

 

4. Lewisham Works – adoption of the ‘Connecting Communities’ ESF 
grant award 

 
Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by Councillor 
Kim Powell, the Cabinet Member for Business and Community Wealth 
Building, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 

(1) the Council-delivered ‘Lewisham Works’ all age employment service be 
established; and 

NOTICE OF DECISIONS MADE BY 
THE MAYOR & CABINET  

 

 

Page 32



(2) receipt of a European Social Fund grant of  £755,637.40, brokered by 
Central London Forward, be accepted, to deliver the ‘Connecting 
Communities’ employment support programme until September 2023 

 

5. Environment Agency Grant in Aid and Local Levy – Permission to 
submit Outline Business Case Application for Beckenham Place Park 

 
Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Transport, Councillor Sophie McGeevor, the 
Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 
 
(1) the submission of an Outline Business Case Application be made to the 
Environment Agency seeking £ 713,000 Grant in Aid and up to £875,000 
Local Levy; and 
 
(2) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Community Services, 
in consultation with the Director of Law, Governance & Elections to accept 
any Grant offered if the Application is successful and to agree the terms of 
any associated funding agreement. 
 

6. Crofton Park and Honor Oak Neighbourhood Plan 
 
Having considered an open officer report, and a formal presentation by the 
Mayor, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that  the modifications made to the 
policy text outlined in the examiner’s report be accepted and the examiners 
recommendation that the plan should proceed to a public referendum be 
approved. 

 
7. A21 Development Framework 
 

Having considered an open officer report, and a formal presentation by the 
Mayor, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 

(1) the representations received through the public consultation process and 
the amendments proposed to the A21 Development Framework following 
public consultation be noted;  

(2) note be made that the Chair of the Sustainable Development Select 
Committee has reviewed the final draft of the Framework and supports the 
document, expressing a desire for further work in the future to develop this 
in to an SPD; and 

(3) the A21 Development Framework be approved. 
 
 
 
 

8. Supported Accommodation contract award 
 

Page 33



Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Health & Adult Social Care, Councillor Chris Best, the Mayor 
and Cabinet agreed that a mental health supported housing contract be 
awarded to St Mungos to deliver a 12 bed mental health supported housing 
service for the Newstead Road service, with a maximum annual contract 
value of £433,809 for a period of 5 years with an option to extend for up to a 
further 2 years commencing on 1st April 2022  

 
9. Framework Agreement for Services to Adults with Learning Disabilities 
 

Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Cabinet Member for Health & Adult Social Care, 
Councillor Chris Best, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that  

 
(1) the award of contracts be made to the following organisations for seven 
supported  living contracts procured via mini-competition under Lot 1: 
Supported Living of the Framework Agreement for Adults with Learning 
Disabilities 2019-2023: 

Service LDF2A - The Camden Society 
Service LDF2B - The Camden Society 
Service LDF2C - Three C’s Support 
Service LDF2D - Aurora Nexus 
Service LDF2E - Three C’s Support 
Service LDF2F - Aurora Nexus 
Service LDF2G - Aurora Nexus 

 
(2) the award of contracts be made to the following organisations for three 
registered residential care service contracts procured via mini-competition 
under Lot 2: Registered Residential Care of the Framework  Agreement for 
Adults with Learning Disabilities 2019-2023: 
 
Service LDF2H - Aurora Nexus 
Service LDF2J - Aurora Nexus 
Service LDF2K - PLUS 
 
(3) an extension of six months be approved to the current contracts for 
LDF2A, LDF2B and LDF2D, where it is recommended there is a change of 
provider, to allow for the new provider to undertake due diligence and 
consultation with staff as set out in the TUPE Regulations before the 
contracts are taken up by the winning bidders; 

 
(4) an extension of three months be approved to the current contracts 
LDF2C, LDF2E, LDF2F, LDF2G, LDF2H, LDF2J and LDF2K, where it is 
recommended there is no change of provider; 
 
(5) the 10 contracts shown in recommendations 1 & 2 above be awarded for 
a 4 year period on a London Living Wage basis; 

 
(6) the contracts have the following start date and cost : 

 

Page 34



Service Annual Value Total Value of 
Contract (4 years) 

Proposed 
contract start 
date 

LDF2A £168,738.96 £674,955.84      01/07/2022 

LDF2B £104,350.48 £417,401.92 01/07/2022 

LDF2C £228,230.08 £912,920.32 01/04/2022 

LDF2D £171,460.84 £685,842.56 01/07/2022 

LDF2E £203,288.28 £813,153.12 01/04/2022 

LDF2F £265,748.60 £1,062,994.10 01/04/2022 

LDF2G £271,121.76 £1,084,487.04 01/04/2022 

LDF2H £307.980.92 £1,231,923.68 01/04/2022 

LDF2J  £244.027.16 £976.108.64 01/04/2022 

LDF2K £395,606.12 £1,582,424.48 01/04/2022 

 
(7) for supported living service contracts, these costs represent an annual 
reduction of £82,671.16 on current contract costs and for registered 
residential care service contracts, an annual reduction of £76,141.52 on 
current contract costs for a total annual reduction for these 10 contracts of 
£158,812.68.   

 
10.  Permission to Procure Home Care 
 

Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Health & Adult Social Care, Councillor Chris Best, the Mayor 
and Cabinet agreed that: 
 
(1) the procurement of the following nine contracts be approved all for a 
period of 5 years with the option to extend for up to a further 2 years with 
estimated total costs as set out in the table below: 
 
Contract  Estimated 

annual 
value  

Estimated 
value – 5 
years  

Estimated 
value – 7 
years 

Neighbourhood 1 £2,500,00
0 

£12,500,00
0 

£17,500,00
0 

Neighbourhood 2 £6,000,00
0 

£30,000,00
0 

£42,00,000 

Neighbourhood 3 £5,300,00
0 

£26,500,00
0 

£37,100,00
0 

Neighbourhood 4 £3,200,00
0 

£16,000,00
0 

£22,400,00
0 

5: Specialist End of Life Care advice, 
support and training 

£120,000 £600,000 £840,000 

6: Specialist Mental Health advice, 
support and training 

£120,000 £600,000 £840,000 

7: Specialist advice, support and training 
to support the effective management of 
individuals with advanced dementia 
including those presenting with 

£120,000 £600,000 £840,000 

Page 35



behaviours that challenge  

8: Specialist Learning Disability and 
autism advice, support and training  

£120,000 £600,000 £840,000 

9: Specialist advice, support and training 
to enable all those in receipt of 
commissioned home care to maximise 
meaningful life roles e.g. enabling 
community engagement. 

£120,000 £600,000 £840,000 

 

(2) delegated authority be given to the Executive Director for Community 
Services, following stage 1 of the procurement process, to determine the 
short-listed suppliers recommended to stage 2 of the procurement process. 

 
11. Permission to Award Contract for Lewisham Advocacy Hub 

 
Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Cabinet Member for Health & Adult Social Care, 
Councillor Chris Best, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that the award of the 
Lewisham Advocacy Hub contract be approved to POhWER at a cost of 
£504,000 per annum for three years, with the option to extend for up to 2 
years, at a total contract cost of £840,000. 

 
12. Authority to negotiate with Lewisham & Greenwich Trust for the direct 

award of Specialist Sexual and Reproductive Health Services 
 

Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Cabinet Member for Health & Adult Social Care, 
Councillor Chris Best, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that a waiver of the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules be authorised and direct negotiation of 
a contract with Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust be approved for a 
period of 3 years with the option to extend for up to 2 further years 
commencing on 1st April 2023 with the maximum contract value of £2,45M 
per annum and £12,250,000 total contract value the full 5 years. 

 
13. Building Security & Related Services 
 

Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources, Councillor 
Amanda De Ryk, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 

 
(1) a contract be awarded to Smart Sec Solutions Limited to deliver building 
security and related services, for a period of 3 years, up to a maximum 
contract value of £1,508,678.82, commencing on 1 May 2022, with an option 
for the Council to extend for a further 2 years; 

(2) following carrying out an options appraisal, Officers be authorisedto work 
with the awarded service provider Smart Sec Solutions Limited during the 
three month mobilisation period and ongoing throughout the life of the 
contract to remodel the service in-line with alternative option IV, Hybrid 
option 2 to insource the Front of House and Reception personnel with 

Page 36



intention of improving the experience of staff and visitors when visiting 
Laurence House  by insourcing to reception and Front Of House services to 
the Old Town Hall only with no financial cost impact to the Council. 

(3) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Corporate Services 
to vary the contract for security services as required for Downham, 
Lewisham, Catford and Deptford Libraries that are currently reopening with 
these sites being excluded within the maximum contract value of 
£1,508,678.82 and the tendered cost for building security and related 
services for the 4 Libraries be £747,035.59 treated as a contract variation 
and note be taken Facilities Management will work closly with the Library 
services to ensure best value is maintained throughout the period 

Downham Library Lewisham Library 

Y1 Y2 Y3 Y1 Y2 Y3 

£42,910.4
3 

£43,028.1
1 

£42,910.4
3 

£68,683.8
6  

£68,782.27 
£68,596.0
8 

Total £128,848.97 Total £206,062.21 

Catford Library Deptford Library 

Y1 Y2 Y3 Y1 Y2 Y3 

£68,683.8
6 

£68,782.2
7 

£68,596.0
8 

£68,683.86 
£68,782.2
7 

£68,596.0
8 

Total £206,062.21 Total £206,062.21 

 
 
 
 
 
Kim Wright 
Chief Executive,  
Lewisham Town Hall,  
Catford SE6 4RU  
 
10 March 2022 
 

Page 37



 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 

 

1. Recommendation 
 
To consider key decisions taken by the Executive Director of Community Services, 
which will come in to force on 23 March 2022, unless called in by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Business Panel on 22 March 2022. 
 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Executive Director of Community Services made the following key decisions on 
15 March 2022: 
 

i. Permission to Award Contract for Statutory Public Funeral Service 
(also in Part 2). 

 
2.3 Under the provisions of Standing Orders Part IV E 14, Members may call in 

an executive decision within 7 days.  If the reports are not called in decisions 
to be made will come into force on 23 March 2022. 
 
 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to consider key decisions taken by the Executive Director of 
Community Services – open session 

Decisions made by the Executive Director of Community Services 
 

Date: 22 March 2022 
Key decision: Yes  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

KEY DECISION 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

Executive Director for Community Services 

 

 

 

1. Summary 

Permission to Award Contract for Statutory Public Funeral Service 

Date: 07 February 2022  

Key decision: Yes.  

Class: Part 1 

Ward(s) affected: All  

Contributors: Executive Director, Community Services 

Executive Director of Corporate Resources 

Executive Director, Law Governance and Elections 

 

Timeline and Engagement  
 

19/10/2021  Permission to Procure report to Executive Director 

15/03/2022 Permission to Award report to Executive Director for 
Community Services   

 
 

 

Outline and recommendations 
 

Executive Director for Community Services is recommended to award a contract to the 
following provider(s) as set out below to deliver the Statutory Public Funeral Service  

1) Funeral Services Limited trading as Co-op Funeralcare to deliver the Statutory Public 
Funeral Service. The contract will be for 3 years, commencing on 01 April 2022, with an 
option to extend for a further 2 years at an estimated cost of £25,600 per annum.   

 

 

 
 
 

Page 39

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

1.1 The Integrated Commisisoning Team commission a range of adult social care 
services to meet the needs of the most vulnerable residents of Lewisham.  

1.2 The Team works to align services with the ambitions of Lewisham Council 
working in partnership with other directorates in order to ensure high quality 
accesible services continue to be delivered whilst also maximising the 
effectiveness and strategic use of these services. 

1.3 Public Health funerals are provided by the Statutory Public Funeral Service for 
those who have passed away and have no next of kin, or whose next of kin, 
relatives or friends are unable or unwilling to make the necessary arrangements 
for a funeral. They are designed to protect Public Health and are important in 
ensuring that all individuals are treated with dignity and respect, regardless of 
their circumstances. 

1.4 The Council pays for each funeral at an individual cost per funeral as and when 
the service is required. The Council claims part or full reimbursement of its 
costs from any residual funds remaining in the estate of the deceased person 
on the basis that by law funeral costs are the first call on the estate of a 
deceased person.  

1.5 The Statutory Public Funeral Service contract is due to expire on 31 March 
2022. Permission to procure this service via a light touch regime tender process 
was agreed by the Executive Director for Community Services on 19/10/2021 

1.6 This report summarises the work undertaken and procurement approach 
implemented resulting in the decision to recommend the award of the Statutory 
Public Funeral Service contract to Funeral Services Limited t/a Co-op 
Funeralcare process. The contract will commence April 2022. 

2.      Recommendations  

The Executive Director for Community Services  is recommended to award a 
contract to:  

2.1 Funeral Services Limited t/a Co-op Funeral care to deliver the Statutory Public 
Funeral Service at a cost of £25,600 per annum (potential total cost £128,000). 
The contract will be for an initial period of 3 years, commencing on 01 April 2022, 
with an option to extend for up to a further 2 years. 

3. Policy Context 

3.1 Section 46 (1) of the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 imposes a 
duty on the Local Authority to ‘cause to be buried or cremated the body of any 
person who has died or been found dead in their area, in any case where it 
appears to the authority that no suitable arrangements for the disposal of the 
body have been or are being made otherwise than by the authority1’. 

3.2 Local authorities are, therefore, responsible for arranging a burial or cremation 
where a person has died or who has been found dead in their area (though may 
not live there), and it is apparent that this will not be carried out otherwise. This 
includes any deceased person who immediately before death was being 
provided with accommodation in a care setting under Part 1 of the Care Act 
2014.  

                                                

1 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1984/22/section/46 

Page 40

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1984/22/section/46


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

3.3 The Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 also stipulates that the 
deceased should not be cremated where the local authority has reason to 
believe that this would be contrary to the wishes of the deceased. It is, 
therefore, important to be mindful of any indications of the deceased’s preferred 
method for their final committal, including any requirements they had in relation 
to their religion or belief. 

3.4 The proposed award of the contract detailed in this report meets the Corporate 
Strategy 2018/22 to deliver and defend health and social care services that 
protect the most vulnerable in the borough. 

4.  Background 

4.1 The current service was awarded by Mayor and Cabinet and went live on 01 
April 2017. Permitted extensions were approved as detailed in the Permission 
to Procure report included in the ‘Background Report’ section of this document. 
The contract was initially let over 3 years with an option to extend for a further 2 
years (1+1 ). The current contract ends on 31 March 2022.  

4.2 As described in section 3 of this report, the Statutory Public Funeral Service 
plays a vital role in ensuring key elements of the corporate strategy are 
delivered and that appropriate services are in place to meet the needs of the 
most vulnerable residents in the borough.    

4.3 A comprehnsive review of current provision was undertaken by offciers across 
2021 to inform the procurment approach for this service which was agreed by 
the Executive Director on 19/10/2021. 

5.      Procurement Arrangements 

5.1 Officers agreed that the best procurement route would be the ’open’ procedure 
whereby all organisations expressing an interest are invited to tender.  

5.2 Officers used the Pro Contract to advertise the following contract: Statutory 
Public Funeral Service  

5.3 The tender for the Statutory Public Funeral Service went live on 27 October 
2021 and closed on 01 December 2021 

5.4      The following criteria were assessed during the evaluation process: 

Financial 50% 

Management and Operational Structure  10% 

Sufficiency of staff 10% 

Communication  5% 

Vehicles 5% 

Equality and Diversity 3% 

Health and Safety 4% 

Social Value 5% 

Climate Change 2% 

Covid Implications 2% 

Customer Care 4% 

 

5.5 In accordance with ‘Best Value’ the specification produced for the contract was 
‘output based’. Tenderers were asked to submit a description of their proposals 
in the form of Method Statements, in order to test tenderers’ understanding of 
service requirements.  These included proposals for assisting the Council in 
delivering continuous improvements. 

Page 41

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

5.6 The Method Statements (appendix 1) were assessed under the non-financial 
criteria and those provided by the successful tenderers will form part of the 
Contract documentation against which their performance will be monitored.  

5.7 The pricing schedule used to assess the financial aspects of the bids are shown 
in Appendix 2. 

5.8 Following the placement of an ‘open’ advertisement in Pro-Contract for this 
service, 3 organisations expressed an interest in providing this service. All 3 
organisations went through to the evaluation process. 

6.       Synopsis of the bids received. 

6.1 Full synopsis of the bids received are set out in section 6 of the Part 2 report.  

7. Financial implications  

7.1      The Funeral and Protection of Properties annual budget is £92,350 which will 
cover the statutory element £25,600 of funeral costs. 

 

7.2  Annual cost is based on average number of public burials in prior years. Further 
details on unit cost is contained in part 2 of the report, section 6.3. There’s 
some resource available should the trend change and activity increase. 

  

7.3 The service will continue to recoup funds from the deceased where they have 
estate / savings.   

 

8. Legal implications  

8.1  The Council’s Constitution contains requirements about how to procure and 
manage contracts.  These are in the Contract Procedure Rules (Constitution 
Part IV).  Some of the requirements in those Rules are based on the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 as amended by the Public Procurement 
(Amendment ect) (EU Exit) Regulations (“the Regulations”) with which the 
Council must comply.  Given the value of the contract the Regulations do not 
apply.   

8.2 The report proposes the establishment of a contract for three years with an 
option to extend for up to a further 2 years.  The potential value of the contract 
including the extension is below £500,000, which means that this is a Category 
B contract for the purposes of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and one 
which is to be awarded by the Executive Director. 

8.3 This contract has been externally and openly advertised as required by the 
Council’s Constitution.   

8.4 The report explains the evaluation approach and process applied to the bid and 
the reasons for recommending the successful bid for approval.  The Invitation to 
Tender set out that tenderers had to reach specified scores.  The process 
followed, including exclusion of tenderers who did not reach the minimum 
score, was in compliance with the advertised and required procedures.  

8.5 This decision is not a Key Decision. 

8.6 In taking this decision, the Council’s public sector equality duty must be taken 

Page 42

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

into account.  It covers the following protected characteristics: age, disability, 
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.  In summary, the Council 
must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: eliminate 
unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act; advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a protected characteristic and those who do not; and foster good relations 
between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 

8.7 It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct, or to promote equality of 
opportunity or foster good relations between persons who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. It is a duty to have due regard to the need 
to achieve the goals listed above.  The weight to be attached to the duty will be 
dependent on the nature of the decision and the circumstances in which it is 
made. This is a matter for Mayor and Cabinet, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. Mayor and Cabinet must understand the impact 
or likely impact of the decision on those with protected characteristics who are 
potentially affected by the decision. The extent of the duty will necessarily vary 
from case to case and due regard is such regard as is appropriate in all the 
circumstances. 

8.8 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has issued Technical 
Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance. The 
Council must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty. 
The Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet 
the duty. This includes steps that are legally required, as well as recommended 
actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but nonetheless regard 
should be had to it, as failure to do so without compelling reason would be of 
evidential value. The statutory code and the technical guidance can be found on 
the EHRC website. 

9. Equalities implications 

9.1 The Statutory Public Funeral Service contract provides services for those who 
have passed away and have no next of kin, or whose next of kin, relatives or 
friends are unable or unwilling to make the necessary arrangements for a 
funeral.  

9.2 The service is required to abide by equality legislation. The service specification 
for the new service will promote and safeguard equality, diversity and inclusion 
throughout the length of the contract in line with the Equality Act 2010.  

9.3 The Council’s Equalities objectives are addressed in the contract 
documentation and were part of the tender evaluation criteria. 

10. Climate change and environmental implications 

10.1 The Council’s climate change objectives are addressed in the contract 
documentation and were part of the tender evaluation criteria. 

10.2 There are no environmental implications. 

11. Crime and disorder implications 

11.1 There are no crime and disorder implications.  

Page 43

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

12. Health and wellbeing implications  

12.1 The services detailed in this report will have a positive impact on health, mental 
health, and wellbeing by providing peace of mind to those close to individuals 
requiring a Statutory Public Funeral Service 

13. Social Value 

13.1    The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 requires that the council considers, 
before commencing a procurement process, how wider social, economic and 
environmental benefits that may improve the wellbeing of the local area can be 
secured.  

13.2    Bidders were therefore asked to submit a method statement that had a 
weighted score of 5%. Bidders needed to demonstrate how the service will 
contribute to employment, skills and economy, Greener Lewisham and training 
Lewisham’s future. 

13.3   The council is an officially accredited London Living Wage (LLW) Employer and 
is committed to ensuring that, where appropriate, contractors and 
subcontractors engaged by the council to provide works or services within 
Lewisham pay their staff at a minimum rate equivalent to the LLW rate. The 
successful contractor will be expected to meet LLW requirements and contract 
conditions requiring the payment of LLW were included in the tender 
documents. 

13.4   Once contract has been awarded the social value delivery and monitoring will be 
formally reported on the KPI Performance report. 

14.    Contract Management  

14.1     In accordance with the Council’s contract management framework this contract 
is a tier 2 contract. Contract Management meetings will be held on a quarterly 
basis and the key performance indicators (KPIs) on the contract management 
dashboard will be monitored and reported on accordingly. 

15. Background papers 

15.1     Background report  

15.2 Permission to Procure Report for Executive Director  

15.2    Credit Safe report   

16. Glossary (n/a) 

17. Report author and contact 

17.1 Tristan Brice, Associate Director, Community Support and Care, Lewisham 
Integrated Commissioning Team 

Contact email: tristan.brice@lewisham.gov.uk  

17.2  Comments for and on behalf of the Executive Director for Corporate 
Resources 

17.3  

17.4 Comments for and on behalf of the Director of Law, Governance and HR 

17.5 Mia Agnew – Senior Lawyer 

Page 44

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:tristan.brice@lewisham.gov.uk


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

17.6 Comments for and on behalf of Finance 

17.7 Abdul Kayoum - Strategic Finance Business Partner (Community Services) 

18 Decision 

Acting in accordance with Standing Orders (paragraph 20 of Section I), I hereby give 
approval for the contract between the Council and Funeral Services Limited t/a Co-op 
Funeral care for the provision of the Statutory Public Funeral Service to be awarded 
from 01 April 2022 as per the details set out in this report. 

 

Signed  

Date 15 March 2022 

Name (printed) Tom Brown 

Executive Director for Community Services 

 

 

  

Page 45

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Appendix 1 - Information required by the method statements 

Main Criteria (& 
Weighting) 

Sub-criteria 
Weighting 

Sub-criteria Evidence Method 
Statement 

1. Management and 
Operational 
Structure (10%) 

5% Please provide a detailed and clear proposal 
on how you will deliver the service outlined in 
the Specification.  

 MS 1a 

5% Please provide evidence of an open and 
innovative approach to service development 

 Ms1b 

2. Sufficiency of Staff 
(10%) 

3% Please provide your proposed programme of 
works/services and how this will directly meet 
the timetable outlined within the ITT. You 
should describe clearly the process you will 
undertake and how you will mobilise and 
manage the project from award. 

 MS2a 

7% Describe how you would employ or have 
access to sufficient numbers of trained, 
responsible and competent staff to deliver the 
service in  

a) In respect of day to day management 
of the service  

b) In respect of front line service delivery 

c) In respect of emergency contacts and 
incidents outside normal working 
hours. 

 MS2b 

3. Communication (5%) 
 

5% Please provide details on how you will 
communicate on a day to day basis with 
Lewisham staff running this contract, 
clients/end users and the public, to ensure 
safety and good performance throughout the 
contract period. You should provide a main 
point of contact for all project queries and 
issues. 

 MS 3 

4. Vehicles (5%) 

 

 

5% 

 

Describe how you would ensure continued 
delivery of service in the vehicle unavailability 
and breakdown 

Please include type of vehicles 

 MS 4 

 

5. Equality & Diversity 
(3%) 

3% Describe how you would implement equal 
opportunities within the context o the 
specification, clearly setting out how you will 
promote and safeguard equality, diversity and 
inclusion throughout the length of the contract. 

 MS 5 

Page 46

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

6. Health & Safety (4%) 4% Please explain your approach to Health and 
Safety including your H&S policy relating to 
fire, safe working environment and 
emergencies  

Describe the measures you would take to 
ensure the safety of staff and mourners of the 
deceased  

 MS4 

7. Social Value (5%) 

 

 

 

 

 

5 % Example: Please detail how you propose to 
deliver Social Value as part of this project and 
how you will meet the following proposed 
Social Value targets over the life of the 
contract. 

A) Employment, Skills and Economy 
(3%) 
B) Greener Lewisham (1%)  
D) Training Lewisham’s Future (1%)  

 MS 7 

8. Climate Change 
(2%) 

2% Please disclose your organisation’s corporate 
carbon emissions and identify what actions / 
modifications will be taken to reduce carbon 
intensity in relation to the goods / services in 
this tender project, including the type of 
vehicles that will be used for transportation. 

 MS 8 

9. COVID-19 
Implications (2%) 

2% What are your plans for your organisation to 
safely deliver the contract services to ensure 
that their supply chains are able to deliver in line 
with The Health Protection (Coronavirus) 
Regulations 2020 and published government 
legislation and advice, including your 
organisation’s vaccination response rate?) 

 MS 9 

 

10. Customer Care (4%)  4% Describe how you would ensure that mourners 
attending funeral services provided under the 
contract are treated in an appropriate manner 
by front line staff, and how you would respond 
to feedback or complaints received from the 
Council, relatives or mourners of the deceased, 
or members of the public.  

 

 MS10 

 

  

Page 47

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Appendix 2: Pricing schedule used to assess the financial aspects of the bids 

SERVICE WEIGHTING 

Public Burial or Cremation (as defined in the 
Specification) 

30% 

Private Burial or Cremation (as defined in the 
Specification) 

10% 

Conveyance of bodies outside normal working hours 

 

10% 

 

Page 48

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 

 

1. Recommendation 
 
To consider key decisions taken by the Executive Director of Corporate Services 
mmunity Services, which will come in to force on 23 March 2022, unless called in by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel on 22 March 2022. 
 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Executive Director of Corporate Services made the following key decisions on 
15 March 2022: 
 

i. Contract Award Approval for Beckenham Place Park East Restoration 
Landscape Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract 
Administrator/Supervisor Services 

 
2.3 Under the provisions of Standing Orders Part IV E 14, Members may call in 

an executive decision within 7 days.  If the reports are not called in decisions 
to be made will come into force on 23 March 2022. 
 
 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to consider key decisions taken by the Executive Director of 
Corporate Services – open session 

Decisions made by the Executive Director of Corporate Services 
 

Date: 22 March 2022 
Key decision: Yes  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 

Executive Director for Corporate Resources 

 

Contract Award Approval for Beckenham Place Park East 
Restoration Landscape Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract 
Administrator/Supervisor Services 

Date:  

Key decision: Yes  

Class: Part 1   

Ward(s) affected:  Downham  

Contributors:   

Mia Agnew, Senior Lawyer, Legal Services 

David Austin Director of Finance, Financial Services 

Sorcha Rooney, Procurement and Commercial Services Manager 

 

 
Outline and recommendations 

This report is to seek the Executive Director for Corporate Resources’  agreement to award 
a contract to Building Design Partnership Limited for the provision of Landscape 
Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract Administrator/Supervisor services for the 
regeneration of Beckenham Place Park East following an open tender process at a fee of 
10.94% of  capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of over £1million to £1.9 million,  
or a fee of 9.47%  of  capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of  over £1.9 million, or 
a fee of 13.59% of  capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of  below  £1 million. 

Page 50



  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

In April  2019  Mayor and Cabinet allocated £1,140,000 from the Council’s Capital 
programme to the regeneration of the eastern part of the park, with the understanding that 
additional funding required is secured from other partner. 

On 12 March 2021,  the Executive Director for  Corporate Services agreed to appoint BDP 
through a single tender action process to provide landscape architectural services and 
prepare a design package for Beckenham Place Park East side for submission for planning 
permission at a cost of £24,750.  

On 22 November 2021, the  Executive Director for Community Services agreed to tender a 
contract for the provision of Landscape Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract 
Administrator/Supervisor services for the regeneration of Beckenham Place Park East.   

1. Summary 

1.1 This report is to seek the Executive Director for  Corporate Resources’  agreement to 
award a contract to  Building Design Partnership Limited (BDP) for the provision of 
Landscape Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract Administrator/Supervisor 
services for the regeneration of Beckenham Place Park East following an open tender 
process.   This contract is for  completion of the techincal design of the landscape in 
Beckenham Place Park East and to ensure all aspects of the scheme are delivered to a 
high quality through to handover and use. All duties, as set out by RIBA, associated 
with work stages 4 – 7 will be undertaken by the consultant appointed.  

1.2 The percentage fee rate charged will be as per the rates set out in the pricing schedule 
of the tender based on the actual capital works costs, namely:  

a fee of 10.94% of  capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of over £1million to 
£1.9 million; 

or, a fee of 9.47%  of  capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of  over £1.9 
million;  

or a fee of 13.59% of  capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of  below  £1 
million. 

1.3 The above pecentage fees are  higher that the orginal tender estimate, however this 
pre tender  estimate was an approximation only. Across the board construction industry 
prices have increased in the past year and both of the completed tenders submitted 
had very similar percentage price rates.   Based on an example of a £1.5 million capital 
cost project  the  fee of 10.94% of  capital cost  would translate to  a fees of  £164,100”.  

 

2. Recommendation  

2.1 The Executive Director for Corporate Resources is recommended to approve award of 
a contract to Building Design Partnership Limited for the provision of Landscape 
Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract Administrator/Supervisor services for the 
regeneration of Beckenham Place Park East,  at a  fee of 10.94% of  capital cost  in the 
event of total capital costs of over £1million to £1.9 million,  or a fee of 9.47%  of  
capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of  over £1.9 million, or a fee of 13.59% of  
capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of  below  £1 million. 

Page 51

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

3. Background 

3.1 Since 2016, it has always been the Council’s intention that the whole of Beckenham 
Place Park should be regenerated, and that investment should be spread across both 
sides of the railway line which divides the park.  In order to continue to take forward the 
restoration of the east side of the park, in April  2019  Mayor and Cabinet allocated 
£1,140,000 from the Council’s Capital programme to the regeneration of the eastern 
part of the park, with the understanding that additional funding required is secured from 
other partners.   

3.2 In July 2019, BDP were commissioned by the London Borough of Lewisham to 
progress concept design proposals for the eastern side of Beckenham Place Park, 
including public consultation and work in collaboration with the Environment Agency 
with view to a potentially more modest flood alleviation scheme. This commission of 
BDP built on the completion of the restoration of the western side of Beckenham Place 
Park, which transformed the landscape of the western part through the creation of site 
wide routes, a public swimming lake, new play areas and enhancement of the historic 
parklands and gardens.   

3.3 In parallel with the concept designs, Hydrologic engineers and flood modellers were 
also commissioned to ensure any work to the rivers function hydraulically, to optimise 
the potential flood benefits of the scheme and to prepare a funding business case for 
submission to the Environment Agency.   

3.4 In December 2020 BDP’s commission was extended to take the scheme through to 
submission of a planning application in December 2021.       

3.5 On 22 November 2021 officers obtained approval from the Executive Director for 
Community Services to tender a contract via an open tender process for the provision 
of Landscape Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract Administrator/Supervisor 
services for the regeneration of Beckenham Place Park East.  This contract is for  
completion of the techincal design of the landscape and to ensure all aspects of the 
scheme are delivered to a high quality through to handover and use. All duties, as set 
out by RIBA, associated with work stages 4 – 7 will be undertaken by the consultant 
appointed. 

3.6 An open tender process was followed, advertised through the London Tenders Portal.  
Three tenders were submitted.  Tenders were assessed as set out in this report.  One 
tender was deemed incomplete and two went to moderation.  Based on assessment of 
price and quality it is recommended that BDP be appointed.  

3.7 Full analysis of tender proposals is set out in the confidential appendix. In summary, 
BDP achieved the highest overall score  based on a robust assesement of  quality  and 
on price.  In respect of quality, BDP were the highest scoring tender. It is considered 
that BDP demonstrated  comprehensive skills, processes, abilities, experience and 
resources  to deliver this project.  In respect  of price  BDP submitted a higher 
percentage price, but only by a smal margin, and hence scored lower on price .    

3.8 Tenderers were asked to submit a price for fees on a percentage of capital cost basis 
for each of the three bands of capital costs below:  

- Under £1 million capital works costs   

- £1 Million to £1.9 million capital works cost  

- £1.9 million to £2.7 million capital works costs 

3.9 The current estimate of the capital value of  works to the east side of the park is in the 
range of £1,000,000 to £2,700,000. The design has been developed in such a way as 
to allow for elements of the scheme to be delivered in accordance with funds available.    

3.10 The middle band, £1 Million to £1.9 million capital works cost, was used to evaluate 

Page 52

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

tenders.  This band was determined by the amount of capital funding confirmed or 
deemed likely to  be confirmed for the project on the date of evaluation of 7 March 
2022.  For this middle band, the percentage price submitted by BDP was 10.94%. 
Based on an example of a £1.5 million capital cost project  this would translate to a fee 
of  £164,100 for BDP.  It shoud be noted that for all  three bands there was a only a 
small difference in the percentage prices submitted by the tenderers submitting 
complete tenders and that the choice of band for evaluation had no overall impact on 
highest overall score  based on quality and on price.   

3.11 Whilst only one price band was evaluated, the percentage rate charged will be as per 
the rates set out in the pricing schedule based on the actual capital works costs. 

4. Beckenham Place Park East designs to date  

4.1 The east side of the park is approximately 30 Hectares, bounded by the railway line to 
the west and the river to the east. It is currently relatively flat mowed grass with mature 
trees and vegetation along its perimeter.  The stretch of the River Ravensbourne which 
runs through Beckenham Place Park East is the healthiest stretch of river in the 
borough. However, there is limited visibility and access to the river and it is not widely 
enjoyed by local people.  

4.2 The former playing fields are no longer used for formal pitch sports, but offer a wealth 
of opportunities for new landscaping of nature ponds, sunken lawns and board-walks, 
which could offer valuable flood water storage and enrich the ecology of the park, as 
well as offering new opportunities for recreation and for all ages to engage with nature. 

4.3 The  designs for the east side of the park seek to take forward the a vision of this space 
becoing a key community asset, both in its own right, and as a key part of Beckenham 
Place Park – south east London’s largest open space. The project seeks to make the 
most of Beckenham Place Park as a river corridor, creating an ecological treasure in 
the inner city, establishing an educational resource for all ages, and providing valuable 
storage for flood waters.  

4.4 The key strategic components of the overall ambition for the east side of the park 
reflected in the designs are:  

 Community - An opportunity to build on existing amenities and introduce new uses for 
all to enjoy. It is intended that the community will be engaged throughout the design 
development process.  

 Heritage - The improvements and restoration of this side of the park will need to be 
sensitive to existing heritage and the mature trees, many of them of significant value.  

 Nature  - A balance between nature and amenity needs to be at the heart of this 
project, respecting the existing river corridor and improving the natural processes in the 
park, including: biodiversity; ecology; ground conditions; and water within the park  

 Outdoor Activity - Given the scale of the park and the natural flat terrain there is 
plenty of opportunity to create different activity areas to complement those which exist 
today.  

 Recreation & Play - The existing play areas are tired and in need of refurbishment, 
this project provides the opportunity to improve and create new play areas coupled with 
open space for recreation and sport. 

4.5 These components have been developed into a landscape design concept with the 
following 10 objectives:   

 Strengthen interaction with the river  - Increase accessibility to the river in a 
sensitive way that will maintain the natural environment of the river, whilst allowing 
greater opportunities for interaction with the water and the water’s edge. Identify a 

Page 53

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

series of spaces along the river where openings can be made without disturbing or 
impacting on existing healthy trees. 

 Enhance opportunities for play  - Improve and enhance provision for both 
prescriptive and non-prescriptive play for a wide range of ages. Identify areas of 
opportunity for play to be integrated within the natural landscape that will not only 
encourage greater interaction with nature, but also inspire learning. Introduce better 
play equipment in areas specifically dedicated to play. Provide open lawn areas for 
sports.  

 Introduce water management  - Introduce water management within the park in a 
natural way, using gentle landforms that will create subtle features within the 
landscape, increase wildlife and habitat value and diversity, whilst also reducing flood 
risk to local communities.  

 Retain & increase provision for varying activities - Establish a variety of experience 
and interest within the park through a flowing series of spaces and variations to the 
landscape. Rolling landforms along the perimeter will offer opportunities to diversify 
walking, running and cycle routes around the park. Retain areas of open space and 
level access so that the park can also continue to be used as it is. 

 Create interesting views whilst maintaining clear sight lines - Introduce variation in 
the landscape that will add visual interest and enhance the park’s natural character, 
without obstructing long distant views. 

 Upgrade footpaths & increase circulation - Introduce a network of footpaths that will 
allow more of the park to be explored and enjoyed by everyone. Provide a full circuit 
path around the park. 

 Create a series of experiences  - Introduce a variety of both formal and informal 
seating opportunities to accommodate the needs of all users of the park. These will be 
located along footpaths and integrated within the landscape to offer a series of 
experiences from tranquil, relaxing spaces through to more social seating/ gathering 
opportunities. 

 Improve access & connectivity  - Provide improvement of accessibility and legibility 
by opening up entrances into the park where possible and removing fencing where not 
deemed appropriate. Open up views and create clear sight lines by relocating 
obstructing components and structures to increase visibility into the park. 

 Enhance wildlife and introduce re-wilding  - Additional tree planting will enhance the 
natural character of the park, increase biodiversity, add interest and improve the visual 
experience. The proposals introduce a route through the wooded landscape at the 
southern end of the park to increase opportunities for interaction with existing nature.  

 Explore opportunities for facilities - Opportunity and future aspiration to identify a 
location for a café and toilet building. 

4.6 In addition to the above, if Lewisham is successful in its bid for £750,000 from the 
Mayor of London’s Green and Resilient Spaces Fund additional measures will further 
engage and reconnect the communities of Bellingham,  Downham and Whitefoot and 
improve  walking and cycling connections to the park through a network of cool blue-
greenspaces, including along the Downham Woodland Walk and through exemplary 
rain gardens, tree planting and enhanced legibility.   Associated volunteering activities 
and training will boost confidence and blue-green conservation skills, opening up 
employment opportunities in the green economy, with additional opportunities for those 
suffering poor mental and physical health accessible through social-prescribing 
pathways. 

 

Page 54

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

5. The Contract   

5.1 A landscape architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract Administrator/Supervisor 
commission is key to taking forward the scheme.  All duties as set out by RIBA 
associated with work stages 4 – 7 will be undertaken by the consultant appointed. 

5.2 The consultant will report to the project sponsor through the project manager and work 
with Lewisham Council officers to develop the design and ensure successful 
implementation through to completion on site and handover. The consultant will work 
as part of a multi-disciplinary project team, led by the council’s project manager and 
including a lead officer from the Councils Parks Team.  Works contractors will become 
part of this project team once appointed.  

5.3 Throughout the contract the Contractor will 

 Act as Principal Designer (CDM regs. 2015) including the preparation of pre-

construction health & safety pack(s). 

 Carry out the role of Contract Administrator/Supervisor or such other role as prescribed 

by the particular Building Contract being utilised and as set out in the schedule of 

services in the brief. 

 Provide a CDM Advisor role to enable discharge of Client duties under The Construction 

(Design and Management) 2015 including Regulation 4, relating to the Client’s 

managing responsibilities on their construction projects.    

 Liaison with the Council’s (or other appointed Building Control (BC) provider) to 

establish BC approval. 

 Supporting Council officers with tender analysis that will seek to appoint the most 

suitable and economically viable contractors for construction works (Lewisham officers 

would undertake actual tender processes). 

 Programming of works that might enable tendering to run concurrently with Planning 

Applications, thus enabling a reduction in the timeframe to achieve works on site. 

5.4 High level milestones for the East side restoration are: 

 Planning  application December 2021/ Planning permission June 2022  

 Environment Agency  and Mayor of  London funding  agreed – May 2022 

 Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract Administrator appointed Feb 2022  

 Detailed  design and  works tender packs and procurement of works  – March 2022 to 

September 2022 

 Main works start on site November 2022   

 Completion on site November 2023  

 

6. Procurement Approach 

6.1 The contract was openly tendered  through ProContract,  the Council’s online 
procurement system that works with the London Tenders Portal.   

6.2 The tender was issued 28 January 2022 with a tender return date of 12 noon on 2 
March 2022 via an open process using the London Due North tenders portal and was 
also advertised via Contracts Finder. The indicative timetable for procurement is set out 
below. 

 

Page 55

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

6.3 A 50:50, price:quality weighting was used to evaluate proposals. Quality coverd the 
following areas  

 Technical Ability -  5% 
 Technical / Service Delivery - 16% 
 Capability and  Experience - 10% 
 Project management – 10% 
 Health and Safety  - 4% 
 Sustainable Procurement and Social Value – 5% 

6.4 The pricing evaluation provides the maximum score of 50 for the lowest tenderer with 
remaining submissions ranked and scored against the lowest submission. The quality 
element of the returns was be assessed via the Method Statements outlined below: 

 

Main Criteria (& 
Weighting) 

Sub-criteria 
Weighting 

Sub-criteria Evidence 
Method 
Statement 

Technical ability 

A minimum score 
of 7 is required for 
this Method 
Statement 
response 

 5% 

Please describe your understanding of what is 
required and how this can be delivered 
successfully 

   

   

 MS1*  

Activity Proposed Date 

Tender Issued Friday 28 Jan 2022 

Clarification Deadline 10 Feb 2022 

Clarification Response LBL Deadline 17 Feb 2022 

Tender Return Deadline Midday 2 March 2022 

Confirmation of capital works cost band to be evaluated    after 1 March 2022 

Tender Evaluation Period 7 March 2022 

Moderation Date 8 March 2022 

Earliest Award Decision  23 March 2022 

Earliest Contract Commencement 28 March  2022 

Page 56

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Main Criteria (& 
Weighting) 

Sub-criteria 
Weighting 

Sub-criteria Evidence 
Method 
Statement 

Technical / 
Service Delivery 

A minimum score 
of 7 is required for 
this Method 
Statement 
response for a& b 

 

8% 

Please provide a clear and detailed service 
delivery proposal to meet the requirements set out 
in the specification  

Detail every step of the process in delivering the 
project from the initial kick-off meeting, through to 
completion.   

 MS2a* 

8% 
Please demonstrate your project team has the 
skills required to successfully deliver the project   MS2b* 

Capability and 
Experience 

A minimum score 
of 7 is required for 
this Method 
Statement 
response 

  10% 

Please clearly detail the experience your 
organisation has in delivering similar requirements 
to that shown within the specification.  

You should also include up to three relevant and 
recent (3) detailed case studies that demonstrate 
your experience and capability of meeting the 
requirements of the Council.  

 MS3*  

Project 
Management 

A minimum score 
of 7 is required for 
this Method 
Statement 
response 

10% 

Please provide details of your project team and 
the skills they have that will ensure successful 
delivery of the project. 

   
You should provide CVs with details of relevant 
experience, accreditations and qualifications 
including any proposed specialist sub-contractors. 

Please explain how you will meet, or better, the 
timescales set out in the specification and ITT, 
and provide a Gantt chart format for the project. 

 MS4* 

Health and 
Safety 

 

 

4% 

Please explain how you will:   

Address health & safety, CDM and Principal 
Designer responsibilities and manage and monitor 
health & safety and environmental health issues 
for site and park users.. 

 MS5 

Page 57

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Main Criteria (& 
Weighting) 

Sub-criteria 
Weighting 

Sub-criteria Evidence 
Method 
Statement 

Social Value  

 

 

5% 

Please detail how you propose to deliver Social 
Value as part of this project and how you will 
meet the proposed Social Value targets over the 
life of the contract; specifically stating the number 
of outcomes (i.e. the number 
of apprenticeships, training opportunities or corpor
ate actions) for each key theme and the time 
period when these will be achieved.    

Please see Tender Documents Enclosed for a 

template version of a London Borough of 

Lewisham Social Value Monitoring Report which 

provides an example of how the Council 

structures the tracking of Social Value 

commitments:  

Employment, Skills and Economy   

Greener Lewisham  

Healthier Lewisham  

Training Lewisham’s Future  

 MS6 

Equality, 
Diversity & 
Inclusion 

For 
information 

only 

Please describe how you would implement equal 
opportunities within the context of the specification 
clearly setting out how you will promote and 
safeguard equality, diversity and inclusion 
throughout the length of the contract.   

 MS7 

Climate Change 
For 

information 
only 

Tenderers are required to report on their corporate 
carbon emissions as an organisation using an 
accredited method;   

1. To disclose what those emissions are  

2. To identify what actions or modifications 
they have included (if any) in relation to the 
goods or services tenderers are proposing that 
will reduce carbon intensity.   

 MS8 

GDPR and Data 
Handling 

For 
information 

only 

Please provide a clear description of how you will 
store and manage data in relation to the proposed 
services, and how you will comply with GDPR 
regulations. 

 MS9 

Page 58

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Main Criteria (& 
Weighting) 

Sub-criteria 
Weighting 

Sub-criteria Evidence 
Method 
Statement 

COVID-19 
Implications 

For 
information 

only 

What are your plans for your organisation to safely 
deliver the contract services to ensure that their 
supply chains are able to delivery in line with The 
Health Protection (Coronavirus) Regulations 2020 
and published government advice?   

This should cover any internal arrangements for 
staff and your supply chain, as well as where 
there is any interaction with the public in the 
delivery of the contract.  Please detail any 
additional services, measures and working 
arrangements associated with the plans in place 
(e.g. resource number and assumptions / cleaning 
products / PPE).  

 MS10 

 

6.5 Scoring was on a range of 0  to 10 for MS1 to MS6.. A minimum score of 7 was 
required for  MS1, MS2a, MS2b ,MS3 and MS4.  Items MS7,MS8, MS9 and MS10 
were were specified in the Invitation to Tender as for information only.   

6.6 The tender seal was broken after 12 noon on 2 March  2022. Three tenders were 
submitted.  Tenders were assessed as set out in this report.  One tender was deemed 
incomplete and two went to moderation.  Details of the tenders are shown in the table 
below.  

Tenderer Complete Min. scores 
met 

Price % of 
capital cost 
of £1m to 
£1.9m 

  

Total score Rank 

A. Y Y 10.4 89.8 2 

B. N n/a n/a n/a n/a 

BDP Y Y 10.94 91.3 1 

 

6.7 Credit scores were requested via ‘Creditsafe’ for each contractor to identify any 
contractor who may present a financial risk to the Council.   

6.8 Tenders were evaluated by four officers: 

o Project Manager, Capital Programme Delivery 

o Senior Programme Manager, Capital Programme Delivery 

o Service Improvement Manager, Greenscene – Parks & Open Spaces 

o Flood Risk Manager, Regeneration and Place 

6.9 Following independent analyses by the 4 evaluators a moderation meeting was held 
and overseen and managed by a Senior Procurement and Contracts officer.  
Evaluators discussed each practice and their individual responses to the method 
statements whereby the four parties agreed a consensus score between them. A full 
synopsis of tenders is included in the confidential appendix to this report.  

Page 59

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

7. Key risks  

7.1 Surveys  have been undertaken, including of contamination, but further surveys  may 
identify issues which might extend the programme or escalate  costs.  

7.2 There is a risk that the full  package  of funds to deliver the whole scheme may not be 
avaialable.   The design proposals have been packaged in such a  way that elements 
of the scheme can be taken forward in line with the availability of funds and priorities.  
The percentage rate charged will be as per the rates set out in the pricing schedule 
based on the actual capital works costs. 

7.3 Covid-19  could  potentially effect supply chains and impact on working practices. 
Likewise the design of the park will  need to  be Covid resilient in tems of how the park 
spaces and facilites are used. Covid 19 measures, wil be one of the quality criteria for 
assessing tenders.  

7.4 Different uses of the park  have  different and sometimes conflicting demands. A 
comprehensive  engagement process, involving  a wide range of stakeholders and 
which seeks to reflect the demographic of the area and borough, and a well researched 
and evidenced design provides justification of design decisions taken. The consultants 
wil be part of the multi-disciplinary project team, led by the council’s project manager,  
which will develop, maintain and oversee a clear and comprehensive  communications 
plan. 

8. Financial implications  

8.1 This report recommends that Executive Director for Corporate Resources approves 
award a contract to Building Design Partnership Limited  for   the provision of 
Landscape Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract Administrator/Supervisor 
services for the regeneration of Beckenham Place Park East following an open tender 
process. 

8.2 The percentage fee rate charged will be as per the rates set out in the pricing schedule 
of the tender based on the actual capital works costs, namely:  

a fee of 10.94% of  capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of over £1million to 
£1.9 million; 

or, a fee of 9.47%  of  capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of  over £1.9 
million;  

or a fee of 13.59% of  capital cost  in the event of total capital costs of  below  £1 
million. 

8.3 The current estimate of the capital value of  works to the east side of the park is in the 
range of £1,000,000 to £2,700,000.  

8.4 The middle band, £1 Million to £1.9 million capital works cost, was used to evaluate 
tenders.  This band was determined by the amount of capital funding confirmed or 
deemed likely to  be confirmed for the project on the date of evaluation of 7 March 
2022.  For this middle band, the two  percentage prices submitted in completed tenders 
was 10.4% and 10.94%  - with BDP being the highest price. Based on an example of a 
£1.5 million capital cost project  this would translate to  fees of  £156,000 for the lowest 
priced tenderer and £164,100 for BDP.   

8.5 Budget for this work has been approved from the Council’s Capital Programme. Mayor 
and Cabinet on 24 April 2019 allocated £1.9m from the Council’s Capital programme to 
Beckenham Place Park, of which  £1.14m was towards the  regeneration of the eastern 
part of the park. The report indicated that funding of £0.8m would be sought from other 

Page 60

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

partners towards the financing of the overall budget. The capital programme for 
2022/23 and future years has retained this allocation, it has merely slipped in terms of 
timing delivery. 

 8.6 A funding bid is  being submitted  for  £750k from the the Mayor of London’s Green and 
Resilient Spaces Fund, following a sucessful Expression of interest in September 2021. 
A decision on this is expected March 2022. Likewise a business case to the 
Environment Agency seeking approximately £1m Environment Agency funding is to be 
submitted March 2022. EA decision is expected May 2022 .   The project has been 
developed in such a way to allow for elements to be taken forward in line with available 
budgets hence the consultancy appoinment addressed in this report will be on a 
pecentage of capital cost basis rather than a fixed price.   

 

9. Legal implications 

9.1 The Council’s Constitution contains requirements about how to procure and manage 
contracts.  These are in the Contract Procedure Rules (Constitution Part IV).  Some of 
the requirements in those Rules are based on the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
as amended by the Public Procurement (Amendment ect) (EU Exit) Regulations (“the 
Regulations”) with which the Council must comply. Although the estimated contract 
value was below the financial threshold for the Regulations the process followed 
complies with the Regulations. 

9.2 The potential value of the contract is below £500,000, which means that this is a 
Category B contract for the purposes of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and 
one which is to be awarded by the Executive Director. The potential contract value is 
likely to amount to more than the estimated contract value by more than 10% therefore 
the Executive Director for Corporate Services must approve the award.  

9.3 This contract has been externally and openly advertised as required by the Council’s 
Constitution.   

9.4 The report explains the evaluation approach and process applied to the bid and the 
reasons for recommending the successful bid for approval.  The Invitation to Tender 
set out that tenderers had to reach specified scores.  The process followed, including 
exclusion of tenderers who did not reach the minimum score, was in compliance with 
the advertised and required procedures.  

9.5 This decision is a key decision and must be contained in the Key Decision Plan. 

9.6 In taking this decision, the Council’s public sector equality duty must be taken into 
account.  It covers the following protected characteristics: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex and sexual orientation.  In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of 
its functions, have due regard to the need to: eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act; advance equality 
of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do 
not; and foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

9.7 It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation or other prohibited conduct, or to promote equality of opportunity or foster 
good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who 
do not. It is a duty to have due regard to the need to achieve the goals listed above.  
The weight to be attached to the duty will be dependent on the nature of the decision 
and the circumstances in which it is made. This is a matter for Mayor and Cabinet, 
bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. Mayor and Cabinet must 

Page 61

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

understand the impact or likely impact of the decision on those with protected 
characteristics who are potentially affected by the decision. The extent of the duty will 
necessarily vary from case to case and due regard is such regard as is appropriate in 
all the circumstances. 

9.8 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has issued Technical Guidance 
on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance. The Council must have 
regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty. The Technical Guidance 
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that 
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have 
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without 
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical 
guidance can be found on the EHRC website. 

 

10. Equalities implications 

10.1 The appointed consultant will be expected to comply with the Council’s equalities policy 
in carrying out this work. The consultant will work to achieve a restored and 
transformed park, which has accessibility for all, and a broader and more diverse 
audience at its heart.  Consultants will be required to seek advice through the new 
Disability Commission and to ensure that  the processes of  seeking public 
engagement  reflect the demographic  of surrounding wards  and the  borough as a 
whole.     

 

11. Climate change and environmental implications 

11.1 The balance between nature and amenity is at the heart of this project, respecting the 
existing river corridor and improving the natural processes in the park, including: 
biodiversity and habitat creation; ecology; ground conditions; and water within the park.  
Key aspects of the scheme include :  

Greening, rewilding and habitat creation 

11.2 Beckenham Park East has remarkable potential to provide and promote an ecologically 
rich landscape that will boost ecosystem productivity. A more diverse landscape results 
in greater species diversity that will ensure natural sustainability for all life forms.  
Nature ponds have been proposed within the landscape one in the north and one in the 
south, to introduce further opportunities for aquatic ecosytems to thrive and grow, 
whilst also playing a role in the flood alleviation strategy for the site.  Water loving plant 
species will be planted, creating varying visual stimulation and experience across the 
park. The ponds will also provide educational opportunities for children.  

11.3 Native wildflowers meadows and grasses mix will be introduced to promote 
biodiversity.  In case of scarcity of topsoil there will be other opportunities around the 
park to seed the receiving areas with wildflower mix under clean excavated subsoil. 

11.4 The park has many valuable trees that are of a great importance and benefit to the 
environment, these tree will be protected and also celebrated by planting more trees.  
Dead wood from the park or from removed trees will be reused to create habitat, 
providing food and shelter and support wildlife . This could be an opportunity to involve 
the local community such as volunteers, community groups or 

Promotion of  walking and cycling 

11.5 New paths, and improvements to existing paths will form part of the new design for the 
Eastern side of the park. This will help emphasise and strengthen connectivity around 
the park for cyclists and pedestrians. The proposals will look to link  paths with the 

Page 62

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

proposed Lewisham cycle plan.  

Flood water managment  

11.6 There has been very close work to date with the EA with view  to flood management 
being a signifcaint part of the scheme. There are  reas of high and medium risk of 
flooding within close proximity to the eastern side of Beckenham Place park. 

Land Contamination 

11.7 The is evidence of historic land contamination through the infilling of gravel pits and 
levelling of land with WW2 rubble.   The proposed works include re-use of site won 
materials to form mounds and flood bunds.  

12. Crime and disorder implications 

12.1 Increasing the use of Beckenham Place Park is key to reducing anti-social behaviour 
and fear of crime in this open space. Investing in the park will help to deter anti-social 
behaviour, helping people to feel safer and discouraging casual vandalism. In addition, 
plans will be developed to engage the community extensively in the park, through 
volunteering opportunities and environmental education.  As volunteers invest in the 
open space, the sense of ownership and pride in the park will grow.  This in turn moves 
them to actively look after the space and deters anti-social behaviour.  

12.2 The appointed landscape architects will be expected to take on board the crime and 
disorder implications of improvements to the park and wil be asked to demonstrate this 
as part of the tender process.   

13. Health and wellbeing implications  

12.3 Renovation and regeneration of the  park wil provide significant  health and well being 
opportunities.    The appointed landscape architects will be expected to design and 
deliver a COVID resilient scheme, including consideration of  how active spaces and an 
increased intensity of use is designed for.  

14. Social Value implications  

12.4 Tenderers were asked to detail in their submissions how they propose to deliver social 
value as part of this project and how they will meet the social value targets over the life 
of the contract; specifically stating the number of outcomes (i.e. the  number 
of  apprenticeships, training opportunities or corporate actions) for each key 
theme and the time period when these will be achieved.    

12.5 A template version of a London Borough of Lewisham Social Value Monitoring Report 
was included as part of tender documentation which provided an example of how the 
Council structures the tracking of Social Value commitments of  Emwployment, Skills 
and Economy; Greener Lewisham; Healthier Lewisham; and Training Lewisham’s 
Future,  

12.6 The consultant proposed to be appointed set out a clear understanding of potential for 
and a commitment to social value in Lewisham  and a comprehsive range of specific 
targets  were detailed with reference to Lewisham social value monitoring tool and key 
performance indicators.   

12.7 The Project Manager, Capital Programme Delivery and the Council’s Local Labour and 
Business Scheme Project Officer  will  monitor deivery of social value.    

  

Page 63

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

15. Contract Management 

15.1  A Contract Classification is determined by a combination of the level of contract risk, 
criticality and financial value. The classification for this contract requires a minimum of 
monthly contract management meetings with the provider and quarterly meetings for 
output monitoring. 

16. Background Papers 

Permission to Procure Report 

Permission to 

tender report BPP RIBA 4 - 7 final - November 2021.docx
 

 
 

I approve / the recommendations in this report 

Signed:   

 

 

 

David Austin, Director of Finance (Deputy s151) 

for and on behalf of: 

Executive Director for Corporate Resources 

Date:   18 March 2022     

 

17. Report author and contact 

Adam Platts, Project Manager, adam.platts@lewisham.gov.uk 

Mob: 07392 860 444 

Page 64

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Contract Award Approval for Beckenham Place Park East 
Restoration Landscape Architecture/ Principal Designer/ Contract 
Administrator/Supervisor Services 

Date:  9 March 2022 

PART  2:  CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX 

A full synopsis of tenders is set out below: 

A. Chris Blandford Associates Limited 

 Minimum scores met: yes    

 Financial Score:   50 

 Quality Score:      39.8 

 Combined Score:  89.8 

 Overall ranked position: Second 

MS 1. This was a good response demonstrating a reasonable understanding of 
what is  required.  A clear approach is set out of how to ensure project goals are 
met. Lacking some understanding of the technical constraints of the project - 
water and levels, flood defences, contamination -  which are key parts of the 
scheme. Limited information set out regarding biodiversity. No climate change 
information included. Limited reference to play and recreation – again key parts 
of the scheme.  

Standard project delivery measures outlined but does not really relate to the 
specifics of and demonstrate an understanding of what is required in BPP. The 
matter of uncertainty around funding is not addressed. 

MS2: A good description of the process highlighting key stages, although 
contamination should have been referred to as this is  one of the challenges of the 
site and  and referred to in background douments provided in the tender pack. 
Compromised by a list of exclusions not included in their service towards the end of 
the submission including planning conditions, cut and fill calculations etc. , a number of 
which the Council would expect to be included as part of the service.    

  Role of architect is unclear apart from bringing local knowledge to the project. 

MS3.  A very good response.  Full team described - contains all  expected 
elements.  Limited information provided regarding engineering roles. Limited 
detail provided re. Principal Designer role. Team members have history of 
working on similar projects. 

MS4. Provided good details of the skills, experience and capability of the project 
team that will be involved. Programme is good with an understanding of some 

Page 65

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

of the local authority challenges. Sound approach to tender, sign offs etc. but 
concern that only refers to monthly meetings and no other visits.  

MS5. A good but failrly generic health and safety response. Demonsrates 
understanding of H&S issues on site and provides information on how to 
manage risks but more direct reference to BPP woud have been beneficial.  

MS6. A very good range of detail of possibilities for social value set out with 
specific reference to Lewisham context. However, a major ommission  is that no 
specific targets are set out. Lewisham social value monitoring tool and KPIs are 
referred to but no detail is specified. 

MS7,MS8, MS9 and MS10.  These items were specified in the Invitation to 
Tender as for information only.  Adequate information and details were 
provided.  

 

B. Atelier Design & Build Di Lazzara Ltd 

 Minimum scores met: no     

 Financial Score:   n/a 

 Quality Score:      n/a 

 Combined Score:  n/a  

 Overall ranked position: n/a  

Submission was incomplete. They failed to submit any Method Statements.  

 

C. Building Design Partnership Limited  

 Minimum scores met: yes    

 Financial Score:   47.53 

 Quality Score:      43.6 

 Combined Score:  91.13 

 Overall ranked position: First 

MS 1. An excellent response. Proposal meets and exceeds in some areas. It 
builds a level of confidence that the tenderer can deliver the requirements 
through evidence of relevant ability, understanding, skills, resources and 
quality measures. Comprehensive range of issues identified including 

Page 66

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

nature/biodiversity with only very minor reservations. Probes very well into 
specifics of projects in setting out how it can be delivered. 

MS2: A comprehensive and detailed and very clear service delivery 
programme is set out covering all expected areas. Refers to involvement of 
schools but not other partners in inception – though through their current 
role in the project, as explained in the tender,  BDP have a full 
understanding of range of partners and relationships with different partners. 
Clear and very comprehensive breakdown of steps involved including 
principal designer. Includes  contamination management.  Good to see 
weekly site visits are included, this will be necessary to supervise works on 
site efficiently 

MS3.  A proven project team with very comprehensive experience. They 
offer a skilled team and one which is fully integrated/used to working 
together effectively within the practice. The QS attached to the project has 
good open space project experience and the MTB expert is a bonus.  Would 
have been good to see people from other bigger/prestigeous park project. 
Lots of prestigious urban realm project not so much parks. 

MS4. Excellent experience and competences of team demonstrated.  An 
appropriately skilled team with some good backround working on rivers, 
SUDS etc. A sensible and comprehensive programme is offered. A  mid 
tender contractor day is offereed to help avoid any confusion amongst 
tenderers. Lead Lansdscape Architect role is highly valuable providing great 
context and years of high-level landscape architecture work. Supporting 
landscape architects are very experienced again with proven track record. 
Very clear and highly experienced civil engineer, principal designer and 
lighting engineer personnel detailed. Very experienced cost consultant. MTB 
expertise included. This section recognises need for flexibility of program 
regarding funding. One member of the team has specific experience of 
constructing flood bunds.  

MS5. This section is specific about the issues in BPP. Good example of 
phasing plan set out. meets requirements with an appropriate description of 
risks at all stages of the project including post completion. 

MS6. Social value submission very strong. A very good range of examples 
of social value set. Clear understanding of potential for and a commitment to 
social value in Lewisham set out. Good offers in respect of local schools. 
Range of specific target set out with reference to Lewisham social value 
monitoring tool and KPIs. 

MS7,MS8, MS9 and MS10.  These items were specified in the Invitation to 
Tender as for information only.  Adequate information and details were 
provided.  

Page 67

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 

1. Summary 
 

1.1. The intention of this item is to provide Members with an update on current scrutiny 
activity, including the work of the there task and finish groups. 
 

2. Recommendation 
 

2.1. Members are asked to disuss and note any information provided. 
 

3. Scrutiny Update 
 

Select Committees 
 

3.1 The final round of Select Committee meetings this administration is currently taking 
place: 
 

 Sustainable Development – 17 February 

 Healthier Communities –  1 March 

 Safer Stronger Communities – 3 March 

 Housing – 10 March 

 Children and Young People – 16 March 

 Public Accounts – 17 March 
 

Scrutiny Update 

Date: 22 March 2022 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Assistant Chief Executive (Head of Overview and Scrutiny) 

Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of this item is for Members to receive an update from Select Committee 
Chairs on any scrutiny activity related to their Committee that they wish to bring to the 

Panel’s attention. The Head of Overview and Scrutiny may also provide an update if the 
Select Committees have met since the last Business Panel meeting.  

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



  

3.2 Select Committee Chairs are invited to provide an update on any scrutiny activity 
related to their committee that they wish to bring to the Panel’s attention.  
 

3.3 The work programmes for each Select Committee are attached at Appendix A. 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

3.4 The full Overview and Scrutiny Committee met on 8 March to consider a report on the 
priorities and work of the Council’s Economy, Jobs and Partnerships service in 
delivering the pillar of Future Lewisham for “an economically sound future”. Miatta 
Fahnbulleh, Chief Executive of the New Economics Foundation, was the external guest 
and she spoke to Members about sustainable local economic growth. This work was 
led by Councillor Lavery and a number of recommendations were made. There were 
also updates on (a) the resident experience programme, an area of work that scrutiny 
councillors have continued to be involved in; and (b) the implementation of the 
recommendations made at the last meeting, concerning the climate emergency. 
 
Task and Finish Groups 
 

3.5 Three time limited task and finish groups (TFGs) were established last year by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to look at: 

 

 Improving digital inclusion for Lewisham residents with a learning disability to 
improve quality of life 

 Improving Wi-Fi access and connectivity to improve educational outcomes for 
Lewisham’s pupils, particularly those most in need 

 Retrofitting and insulating homes in Lewisham to achieve climate change 
targets.  

 
3.6 The TFGs have now completed their investigations and made recommendations to 

Mayor and Cabinet.  
 

4 Financial implications  
 

4.1 Scrutiny work is managed within existing budgets. Formal recommendations to the 
Mayor arising out of any specific work items within select committee work programmes 
or considered by TFGs are evaluated in the usual way through the process of formal 
reports. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

5 Legal implications 
 

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.  
 

6 Equalities implications 
 

6.1 The Equality Act 2010 (The Act) legally protects people from discrimination in the 
workplace and in wider society. It replaced the previous anti-discrimination laws with a 
single act, making the law easier to understand and strengthen protection in certain 
situations. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 
 

6.2 The Act also imposes a public sector equality duty. This means that in public bodies, of 
which this Council is designated, they must consider all individuals in carrying out their 
day-to-day work when shaping policy, in delivering services and in relation to their own 
employees. It also requires public bodies to: 

Page 69

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents


  

 
- Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination 
- Advance equality of opportunity 
- Foster good relations between different people when carrying out their activities 
 

6.3 The Council recognises diversity is one of its strengths and is committed to creating a 
more inclusive community. Therefore, having due regard to the Act, is confirmation of 
the Council’s commitment to eliminating all forms of discrimination against any group 
within the community and to actively promote an equality of opportunity and positive 
community partnership.  
 

6.4 The delivery of the Council’s equalities objectives is to be achieved through the delivery 
of all of the Council’s strategies, plans and procedures. As such, all select committees 
and other scrutiny bodies, when planning their work and scrutinising items, bear in 
mind the delivery of the Council’s equality objectives. 
 

6.5 Scrutiny tries to make sure that its work reflects the diversity of Lewisham’s 
communities and that the views of residents are fairly represented in scrutiny 
processes. Any recommendations arising from scrutiny work support the Council’s 
corporate strategy and reflect the needs of local residents. 
 

7 Climate change and environmental implications 
 

7.1 There are no direct climate change or environmental implications arising from this 
report.  
 

8 Crime and disorder implications 
 

8.1 There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from this report.  
 

9 Health and wellbeing implications  
 

9.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from this report.  
 

10 Glossary  
 

Term Definition 

Overview & Scrutiny  
 

Overview and scrutiny is the way in which Mayor and Cabinet 
(the ‘Executive’), officers and external organisations are held 
to account for the decisions that they make. It is led by 
councillors who are not members of the Executive. They also 
influence policy development and investigate issues of local 
concern, making recommendations for improvement.  
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

A committee made up of all non-executive councillors which 
carries out scrutiny focussing on strategic and cross cutting 
issues. 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Business 
Panel (OSBP) and Education 
OSBP 

Lewisham has two Business Panels (sub-committees of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee).  
 
OS Business Panel is made up of the chair and vice-chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the chair of each of the 
Select Committees, and two other non-Executive councillors.  
 

Page 70



  

The main functions of Business Panel are reviewing key 
decisions once they have been taken (potentially “calling in” 
key decisions that have been made but not yet implemented); 
coordinating and approving the overall scrutiny work 
programme; and allocating scrutiny work in the event that it 
crosses the remit of more than one scrutiny body.  
 
Three parent governors and two diocesan representatives sit 
on the Education Business Panel, alongside the councillors 
that make up the regular Business Panel. The Education 
Business Panel reviews (and can call-in) key decisions that 
are education matters.  

Select Committee Lewisham has six Select Committees (sub-committees of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee), each made up of non-
Executive councillors and responsible for scrutinising a 
specific service area.  Select Committees gather evidence to 
help them review policies and performance and make 
recommendations to improve outcomes for residents. 
 

Select Committee Work 
Programmes 

The annual programme of work setting out the matters which 
each select committee will scrutinise over the year. 

Task and Finish Group (TFG) A time limited scrutiny body which gathers evidence in relation 
to a topical issue of concern in order to make 
recommendations to improve outcomes for residents. 

11 Report author and contact 

11.1 Charlotte Dale, Head of Overview and Scrutiny, 0208 31 48286, 
charlotte.dale@lewisham.gov.uk 

 

Page 71

mailto:charlotte.dale@lewisham.gov.uk


Children and Young People Select Committee work programme 2021-22

Work Item Type of item

Strategic 

Priority 17-Jun 22-Sep 25-Nov 26-Jan 16-Mar

Election of the Chair and Vice-Chair constitutional requirement

Select Committee work programme 2021/22 constitutional requirement CP3

Children and Young People's wellbeing and mental health: 

status and trends 
standard item CP3 & CP5

Early Help review progress report policy development CP3 & CP5

Financial stabilisation - budget update and medium term 

plan
performance monitoring All

Children's Social Care Placements - cost and quality performance monitoring CP3&5

Elective Home Education standard item CP3 & CP5

School places planning and children going out of borough standard item CP3 & CP5

Apprenticeships standard item CP3 & CP4

Play Strategy policy development CP3 & CP5

Budget cut proposals standard item All

Embedding race equality in Lewisham's schools - to include 

data on exclusions, alternative provision  attainment
performance monitoring CP3 & CP5

Annual school standards report performance monitoring CP3  

Safeguarding - Ofsted Improvement Plan performance monitoring CP3 & CP5

Information Items, events and visits

Young Mayor and Advisors informal meeting CP3 & CP5

Play strategy update policy development CP3 & CP5

Annual report on attendance and exclusions performance monitoring CP3  

Corporate Parenting and Looked After Children annual 

report
performance monitoring CP3 & CP5

agreed to delay until 

April or May

Safeguarding annual report (formerly LSCB) performance Monitoring CP3 & CP5
agreed to delay until 

April or May

Meeting with Young Mayor and Advisors informal meeting CP3 & CP5 21-Feb

Meeting with Apprentices informal meeting CP3 & CP4 10-Feb

Visit to 'Nurture' Provision in a school informal meeting CP3
02-Feb

Item completed

Item on-going

Item outstanding

Proposed timeframe 

Item added

CP3  Giving children and young people the best start in life CP7  Building safer communities

CP4  Building an inclusive economy

CP6  Making Lewisham greener

CP5  Delivering and defending - health, social care, supportCP1  Open Lewisham

CP2  Tackling the Housing Crisis

Corporate Priorities

P
age 72



Healthier Communities Select Committee work programme 2021/22 

Item Type Priority Delivery 21-Jun 08-Sep 02-Nov 12-Jan 01-Mar

Confirmation of Chair and Vice Chair Constitutional req CP5 June

Work programme 2021-22 Constitutional req CP5 June

Lewisham system recovery Standard item CP5 June/Jan

Migrant charging update Standard item CP5 Sept

Adult social care review update Standard item CP5 Sept/Mar

Lewisham Adult Safeguarding Board (LASB) 

annual report
Standard item CP5 Nov

The Birmingham and Lewisham African & 

Caribbean Health Inequalities Review (BLACHIR)
Standard item CP5 Nov

Budget cuts proposals Standard item CP5 Jan

Leisure centres performance management Standard item CP5 March

Future Homecare Arrangements (New Model and 

Procurement Process)
Standard item CP5 March

Information reports, briefings and visits Type Priority Delivery 

Lewisham Adult Safeguarding Board (LASB) 

annual report

Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 Nov

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust (LGT) quality 

account

Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 tbc

South London and Maudsley NHS Trust (SLaM) 

quality account

Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 tbc

Adult Learning Lewisham (ALL) annual report
Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 July

Health and care bill Briefing CP5 Sept

Migrant charging update Standard item CP5 Sept

Pathology changes - impact on GP services
Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 Tbc

Annual public health report
Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 July `

Item completed

Item on-going

Proposed timeframe 

P
age 73



Housing Select Committee work programme 2021/22

Item Type Priority Delivery 07-Jun 16-Sep 09-Dec 20-Jan 10-Mar

Confirmation of Chair and Vice Chair Constitutional req CP2 June

Allocations policy Standard item CP2 June

Work programme 2021-22 Constitutional req CP2 June

Lewisham Homes annual report and business 

plan

Performance 

monitoring 
CP2 Sept

Resident engagement in housing development - 

response to in-depth review
M&C response CP2 Sept

Rent and service charge increases Standard item CP2 Nov

Support to families with children in education 

impacted by homelessness
Standard item CP2 Nov

Lewisham Homes repairs Standard item CP2 Jan

Shared ownership Standard item CP2 Jan

Location Priority Policy Standard item CP2 Jan

Progress update on housing and homelessness 

strategies
Standard item CP2 March

Ethical lettings Standard item CP2 March

Information reports, briefings and visits Type Priority Delivery 

Regenter B3 annual report and business plan
Performance 

monitoring 
CP2 July

Additional licensing update
Performance 

monitoring 
CP2 Sept

Empty homes strategy Standard item CP2 tbc

New homes programme update
Performance 

monitoring 
CP2 Sept

Item completed

Item on-going

Proposed timeframe 

P
age 74



Item Type of item Priority 07-Jul-21 23-Sep-21 01-Dec-21 27-Jan-22 17-Mar-22

Draft contract management framework Policy development All

Medium term finanical strategy Standard item All

Financial results 2020-21 Performance monitoring All

Children's social care Performance monitoring All, CP3

Adult social care review Performance monitoring All, CP5

Treasury management Performance monitoring All Mid-year review Draft 22-23 strategy

Budget cuts Performance monitoring All

Capital programme review Performance monitoring All

Council budget 2022-23 Policy development All

Local Supply Chains Policy development All

Audit Panel update Performance monitoring All

Information items

Annual complaints report Information All

Financial forecasts 2021-22 Information All

Reserves update Information All

Asset strategy update Information All

Income generation and commercialisation update Information All Review response

Public Accounts Select Committee Work Programme 2021-22

P
age 75



Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee 2021/22

Work Item Type of review

Strategic 

Priority

Delivery 

deadline 16-Jun 21-Sep 04-Nov 13-Jan 03-Mar

Budget Standard Item CP1-CP7 Sep-20

Confirmation of Chair and Vice-Chair
Constitutional 

requirement
CP1 Jun-21

Select Committee Work Programme 2021/22
Constitutional 

requirement
CP1 and CP7 Jun-21

Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy Pre-decision CP1 and CP7 Nov-21

Main Grants Programme Pre-decision All Jan-21
recommendations for 

funding

Borough of Culture
Performance 

monitoring
CP1 Jun-21

Libraries
Performance 

monitoring
CP1 Sep-21 Deferred

Local Assemblies Review and future  inc. NCIL
Performance 

monitoring
CP1 Sep-21

Equalies Review - 6- month update
Performance 

monitoring
All Nov-21

Safe Lewisham Plan
Performance 

monitoring
CP7 Jan-21

Update from local Police and Fire
performance 

monitoring
CP7 Jan-21

HR Update
performance 

monitoring
TBC Mar-21

Information Reports, briefings and minutes

Equalities Data Digest
Performance 

monitoring
CP1 + CP7 on-going

As part of report to committee

Public Health Approach to Violence Reduction
Performance 

monitoring
CP7 on-going

Item completed

Item on-going

Proposed timeframe  

P
age 76



Item Type Priority 30-Jun-21 15-Sep-21 23-Nov-21 18-Jan-22 17-Feb-22

Catford Town Centre Regeneration: masterplan framework Performance monitoring All

Emissions based short stay parking and motorcycle charging Policy development CP6

Waste strategy Policy development CP6

A21 Strategy Policy development CP6

Environmental operations review (including mechanisation proposal) Standard item CP6

Implementation of the transport strategy: walking, cycling strategy and healthy neighbourhoods Policy development CP6

Budget cuts Standard item All

Local plan consultation update (regulation 19 approval) Performance monitoring CP6

Infrastructure delivery plan Policy development All

Information items

Annual parking report Information CP6

Biodiversity action plan update Information CP6

Small sites supplementary planning document review/consultation outcomes Information All

Flood risk management Information CP6

Parks and open spaces strategy update Information CP6

Major planning developments update (incl Bakerloo line) Information CP6

Air quality action plan update Information CP6

Economic recovery on the high street Information CP4

Borough of culture creative legacy Information All

Sustainable Development Select Committee work plan 2021-22

P
age 77



1 CP 1

2 CP 2

3 CP 3

4 CP 4

5 CP 5

6 CP 6

7 CP 7

Delivering and defending: health, social care and support

Making Lewisham greener

Building Safer Communities

Corporate Priorities

Priority

Open Lewisham

Tackling the Housing Crisis

Giving Children and young people the best start in life.

Building an inclusive local economy

Page 78



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\7\7\ai00031777\$evdkpme3.doc 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 

 
Recommendation 

 
1. It is recommended that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 

the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act, as amended by the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (Amendments) 
(England) Regulations 2006:- 

 
2. Decisions made by the Mayor and Cabinet on 9 March 2022: 

 
i. Framework Agreement for Services to Adults with Learning Disabilities (also in 

Part 1). 
ii. Permission to Award Contract for Lewisham Advocacy Hub (also in Part 1). 
iii. Authority to negotiate with Lewisham & Greenwich Trust for the direct award of 

Specialist Sexual and Reproductive Health Services (also in Part 1). 
iv. Building Security & Related Services (also in Part 1). 

 
3. Decisions made by the Executive Director of Community Services on 15 March 2022: 
 

i. Permission to Award Contract for Statutory Public Funeral Service (also in Part 1). 
 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to note items that may be considered in closed session 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

Date: 22 March 2022 
Key decision: No  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: Various 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head Committee 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



Document is Restricted

Page 80

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 81

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 86

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 25/01/2022 Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 08/02/2022 Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel
	Minutes


	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Lewisham & Lee Green's Local Transport Network: Questions & Responses
	4 Key Decision Plan
	Item 4a - Key Decision Plan

	5 Open Session - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 9 March 2022
	6 Open Session - Decision by the Executive Director for Community Services
	Item 6a - Part 1 Funeral Service paper

	7 Open Session - Decision by Executive Director of Corporate Services
	Item 7a - Decision by Executive Director of Corporate Services - Open Session

	8 Scrutiny Update Report
	Item 8a - Appendix A - Select committee work programmes 2021-22 (11)

	9 Exclusion of the Press and Public
	10 Closed Session - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 9 March 2022
	Item 11a - Part 2 Funeral Service paper

	11 Closed Session - Decision by Executive Director of Community Services
	Item 11a - Part 2 Funeral Service paper


